NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING

TUESDAY, March 4, 2025 5:00 PM.

BOARD ROOM, MGSD TREATMENT PLANT,
1790 HWY. 395, MINDEN, NV 89423

Wastewater Treatment for a Healthy Community and Environment

“Caring for the public health and safety by reliably collecting, treating, and disposing of sewage and
wastewater through efficient, cost-effective, and eco-friendly means.”

~MGSD
AGENDA

1. CALLTO ORDER

2. Public Comment -- Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action
e Public Comment is limited to three minutes per speaker unless the Board Chairman allows additional time.
e PerNRS 241.020, no action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself
has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.

3. District Manager’s Report - For Possible Action
e Discussion includes monthly report of activities, personnel matters, and progress of various projects.
e Action Items may include matters needing immediate attention or resolution related to plant repairs, sewer line
repairs, and any other matter of impact to public health and safety.

4. Chairman’s Comment - Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action
e Discussion includes comments and status of projects not covered under an agenda item
NOTE: No action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been
specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.

5. Claims Review and Approval - For Possible Action
e Review and Approval of Bills Paid and Claims Received for January 2025.

6. Minutes Approval - For Possible Action
e Approval of Minutes from the February 4™, 2025 Regular Board Meeting.

7. Designation of Auditor - For Possible Action
e Designation of Auditor for FY ending June 30, 2025.

8. CMAR Contract Award - For Possible Action
e Award of CMAR contract for the US 395/SR 88 Interceptor Rehabilitation

9. MGSD FY 25-26 Tentative Budget Meeting and Public Hearing Dates — For Possible Action
Schedule meeting dates for the following:
e Tentative Budget Meeting; available dates are April 2" through April 11t
e Public Hearing for FY 25-26 Budget; available dates are May 19" through May 29"

1790 Hwy. 395 ® Minden, Nevada 89423 ® 775-782-3546 ® 775-782-4915 fax



MGSD Regular Board Meeting
March 4, 2025, 5:00 pm
Page 2

10. District Manager Annual Review - For Possible Action
e Annual performance review for District Manager Peter Baratti as outlined in the terms of the
Employment Contract between Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District and Peter V. Baratti. Action
items may also include compensation and benefits.

11. Attorney-Client Conference - For Possible Action

e Status Report of Ongoing Matters and Requests from MGSD Staff and Board of Trustees
e Note: The Board of Trustees reserves the right to interrupt the open meeting during this time and adjourn
to a closed session for the purpose of having an attorney-client discussion regarding potential or existing
litigation, pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2). No action will be taken on an item discussed during a closed
session.

12. Engineer’s Report - For Possible Action

e Action Items may include matters needing immediate attention or resolution related to line
rehabilitation, line cleaning, and progress of various projects.

13. Administrative Report by Staff — For Possible Action
e Action Items may include correspondence requiring immediate action or response by the Board.

14. Board Comment — Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action
e Discussion may include comments and status of projects not covered under a prior agenda item (No action may
be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on
an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.)

15. Public Comment -- Discussion Only, Not For Possible Action
e Public Commentis limited to three minutes per speaker unless the Board Chairman allows additional time.
e PerNRS 241.020, no action may be taken on a matter raised under this item of the agenda until the matter itself
has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which action will be taken.

16. ADJOURNMENT

e The MGSD Board reserves the right to hear any agenda item out of order, to combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and
remove an item from the agenda or delay a discussion relating to any item on the agenda.

e Copies of supporting material are available online at www.mgsdistrict.org or can be requested from the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation
District Office located at 1790 Hwy. 395, Minden, NV 89423, by calling Haley Freeman or Jessica Kneefel at (775) 782-3546, or by email
at Staff@mgsdistrict.org or at haley@mgsdistrict.org or at jessica@mgsdistrict.org.

e Anyagenda item represented by an attorney must give written notice to the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District at least fifteen days
prior to the meeting.

e All persons attending the meeting are required to sign the guest register. All meetings are recorded pursuant to NRS 241.035.

e NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES: Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped
persons desiring to attend the meeting. Please call the MGSD office at (775) 782-3546 in advance of the meeting, so that arrangements
may be conveniently made.

e This meeting notice is posted at the following locations: the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District; Douglas County Historic
Courthouse Building; Gardnerville Post Office; Minden Post Office; and at https://notice.nv.gov

PLEASE DO NOT REMOVE UNTIL: 3/05/2025

1790 Hwy. 395 ¢ Minden, Nevada 89423 ¢ 775-782-3546 ¢ 775-782-4915 fax


http://www.mgsdistrict.org/
mailto:Staff@mgsdistrict.org
mailto:haley@mgsdistrict.org
mailto:jessica@mgsdistrict.org
https://notice.nv.gov/

CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL

1/1/25 - 1/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount
1[1/2/2025 David Kowalski EFT-1/2/25-01 [121824 50300-010 Safety Equipment & Supplies Boots $ 294.53
2[1/8/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5843 212567 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids $ 291.76
3|1/8/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5843 212604 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids $ 246.12
4(1/8/2025 Chevron and Texaco Business Card Services EFT-1/8/25-01 [101656249 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels $ 80.28
5(1/8/2025 DXP Enterprises 5844 54859743 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 420.00
6(1/8/2025 Empire CAT EFT-1/8/25-02 |EPCT00020484 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Maintenance Agreement $ 1,970.00
7(1/8/2025 AT&T MOBILITY EFT-1/8/25-03  [X12192024 64400-010 Telephone Employee Cell Phones $ 982.92
8(1/8/2025 Flyers Energy, LLC EFT-1/8/25-04 [CFS-4100671 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels $ 320.05
9(1/8/2025 Flyers Energy, LLC EFT-1/8/25-04 [CFS-4113252 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels $ 370.87

10(1/8/2025 GRAINGER EFT-1/8/25-05 (9356793852 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 796.58
11(1/8/2025 Hach Company 5845 14304004 52600-010 Lab Repairs & Maintenance Lab Supplies $ 2,535.27
12(1/8/2025 Hach Company 5845 14305785 52600-010 Lab Repairs & Maintenance Lab Supplies $ 1,753.23
13|1/8/2025 Industrial Software Solutions EFT-1/8/25-06 |SINO11945 65310-010 Software Services AVEVA Credits $ 6,145.00
14(1/8/2025 THE PARTS HOUSE 5846 176276 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 68.75
15|1/8/2025 R F MACDONALD CO. 5847 366136 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Boiler Maintenance Plan $ 3,000.00
16|1/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 |24-1681 71200-010 Engineering District Business $ 787.50
17|1/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 |24-1682 55100-010 Reservoir Repairs & Maintenance Effluent $ 457.50
18]1/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 (24-1684 71200-010 Engineering CMAR Contract Pineview $ 1,980.00
19(1/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 [24-1683 51400-010 Repairs & Maintenance System Mapping $ 290.00
20|1/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 [24-1685 71200-010 Engineering Chipotle Plan Review $ 640.00
21]1/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 |24-1686 71200-010 Engineering Plan Review Springhill Suites $ 1,681.25
2211/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 |24-1678 71200-010 Engineering Park Ranch Harvest Facility $ 600.00
2311/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 |24-1679 71200-010 Engineering Stoneridge Villas Plan Review $ 100.00
2411/8/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/8/25-07 [24-1680 71200-010 Engineering Heybourne Meadows Plan Review $ 210.00
25(1/8/2025 Ring Central Inc EFT-1/8/25-08 (CD_000989084 64400-010 Telephone November-December VOIP $ 325.11
26|1/8/2025 COGEN SERVICE 5848 6797 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance CoGen $ 2,500.00
2711/8/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5849 RN323761 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 375.00
2811/8/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5849 RN324097 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 43.00
2911/8/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5849 RN324095 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 72.00
30(1/8/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5849 RN324094 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 72.00
31(1/8/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5849 RN323884 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 72.00

Page 1 of 5




CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL

1/1/25 - 1/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount
32|1/8/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5849 RN323886 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 72.00
33|1/8/2025 SNELL & WILMER, LLP EFT-1/8/25-09 |2931559 71100-010 Legal Legal Services $ 935.00
3411/8/2025 Thatcher Company of Nevada, Inc. EFT-1/8/25-10 [2024400106905 [50400-010 Processing Chemicals Chemicals $ 6,161.77
35]1/8/2025 Warren Averett Technology Group, LLC EFT-1/8/25-11 (78073 65310-010 Software Services Office 365 $ 637.20
36(1/8/2025 Warren Averett Technology Group, LLC EFT-1/8/25-11 77909 65310-010 Software Services Azure Usage $ 1,562.32
3711/8/2025 Warren Averett Technology Group, LLC EFT-1/8/25-11 (78268 71500-010 IT/Tech Professional Services Out of Scope $ 313.75
38|1/8/2025 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY 5850 11562049 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 50.22
39]1/15/2025 Carson Valley Medical Center EFT-1/15/25-01 (123124 50700-010 Other Plant Expense Kowalski DOT Exam $ 173.00
40(1/15/2025 Peter Baratti EFT-1/15/25-02 (1172025 50700-010 Other Plant Expense Peter Baratti Reimbursement $ 130.00
41|1/15/2025 Lochan KC EFT-1/15/25-03 (12202024 50300-010 Safety Equipment & Supplies Grade | Maintenance Test $ 269.00
42]1/15/2025 FIRST CHOICE COFFEE SERVICES EFT-1/15/25-04 [RE-111811 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Kitchen Supplies $ 44.00
43(1/15/2025 Frontier EFT-1/15/25-05 (250101 64400-010 Telephone Power CoGen Monitoring $ 107.86
4411/15/2025 Hajoca Corporation EFT-1/15/25-06 [S014072025.001 [50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance $ 3,999.00
45]1/15/2025 LEAF EFT-1/15/25-07 (17716647 65300-010 Office Equipment/Hardware Copier Lease $ 517.95
46|1/15/2025 POWER & CONTROL SOLUTIONS, INC. EFT-1/15/25-08 (1601 50600-020 R&M Main Breaker Failure Repair Costs Invoice 1601 $ 1,600.00
47|1/15/2025 POWER & CONTROL SOLUTIONS, INC. EFT-1/15/25-08 (1604 16800-030 Boiler #2 Replacement Invoice 1604 $ 575.00
48|1/15/2025 POWER & CONTROL SOLUTIONS, INC. EFT-1/15/25-08 [1605 15600-020 Office Addition Design Invoice 1605 $ 4,175.00
49(1/15/2025 Spectrum Business EFT-1/15/25-09 [157628112724 64400-010 Telephone Internet Service $ 184.98
50]1/15/2025 Thatcher Company of Nevada, Inc. EFT-1/15/25-10 {2025400100117  [50400-010 Processing Chemicals Chemicals $ 6,161.77
51]1/15/2025 Tractor Supply Credit Plan EFT-1/15/25-11 (100834422 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs & Maintenance $ 209.96
5211/16/2025 Battleborn Autobody LLC 5851 01162025 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Jeep Auto Repairs $ 5,963.79
53(1/22/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5852 212670 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids $ 99.54
54(1/22/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5852 212650 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids $ 270.62
55(1/22/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5852 212695 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids $ 232.26
56(1/22/2025 CDW Government EFT-1/22/25-01 |[AB9PL6R 15600-030 Plant PLC & Infrastructure Replacement V Sphere Software PLC SCADA $ 2,496.48
5711/22/2025 Charter Communications 5853 218924901010125 [64400-010 Telephone Fiber COAX Line $ 699.00
58(1/22/2025 DOUGLAS COUNTY CLERK-TREASURER 5854 25MGSD 65200-010 Filing Fees & Permits Voter Registration Maint Fee $ 1,138.50
59|1/22/2025 E2C E Squared C Inc 5855 B51565 71500-010 IT/Tech Professional Services IT Services $ 1,120.00
60(1/22/2025 E2C E Squared C Inc 5855 B51565 65310-010 Software Services IT Services $ 20.82
61]1/22/2025 Flyers Energy, LLC EFT-1/22/25-02 [CFS-4130988 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels $ 302.70
62(1/22/2025 HDR, INC. 5856 1200667568 16800-070 Rehab Concrete in Primary Clarifier 1 & 2 Concrete Rehab $ 48,242.33

Page 2 of 5




CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL

1/1/25 - 1/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount
63|1/22/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES EFT-1/22/25-03 |8393194 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 20.00
64|1/22/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES EFT-1/22/25-03 |9520822 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 21.39
65(1/22/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES EFT-1/22/25-03 [2251683 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 45.24
66(1/22/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES EFT-1/22/25-03 (8366999 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 20.00
67|1/22/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES EFT-1/22/25-03 [4011713 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 123.01
68(1/22/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES EFT-1/22/25-03 [1010577 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 96.40
69(1/22/2025 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES EFT-1/22/25-03 [2903873 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 320.49
7011/22/2025 JOANA PEREZ 5857 957015 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Cleaning Services $ 450.00
71|1/22/2025 Misco Water 5858 40948B29498 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 351.84
72|1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [AM121124 50300-010 Safety Equipment & Supplies First Aid Class $ 97.00
7311/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [AM121224 50700-010 Other Plant Expense iPhone Storage $ 2.99
7411/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [PB120524 50900-010 Operators Education/Training Operator Education $ 19.90
75]1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 (PB120624 50900-010 Operators Education/Training Operator Education $ 19.90
76|1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [CB121324 52600-010 Lab Repairs & Maintenance Lab Supplies $ 216.31
7711/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [CB121824 52600-010 Lab Repairs & Maintenance Lab Supplies $ 88.88
7811/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [AW121924 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 42.80
7911/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [LK121024 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 47.47
80(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 (EB122724 64300-010 Office Supplies & Expense Laboratory Chair $ 279.65
81|1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [LG121124 64300-010 Office Supplies & Expense Toner Cartridges $ 959.21
82(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [LG121924 65300-010 Office Equipment/Hardware Operator Printer $ 321.29
83(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 |LG122824 64500-010 Postage Postage $ 29.99
84(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [NQ121224 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Cleaning Supplies $ 31.99
85(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [NQ121924 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Ice $ 76.40
86(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [NQ122024 64300-010 Office Supplies & Expense Floor Mats $ 289.92
87|1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [HM120624 64300-010 Office Supplies & Expense Office Supplies $ 9.99
88(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [HM120824 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Kitchen Faucet - RETURN $ 235.70
89(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [HM121824 65100-010 Other Administration Expense Christmas Party Supplies $ 162.73
90(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [HM122024 64300-010 Office Supplies & Expense Office Supplies $ 26.27
91|1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [HM122424 65310-010 Software Services Adobe $ 19.99
92(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [HM122824 64330-010 Cleaning & Kitchen Supplies Kitchen Supplies $ 97.90
93|1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [HM123124 65100-010 Other Administration Expense Birthday Lunch $ 63.21

Page 3 of 5




CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL

1/1/25 - 1/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount
9411/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [JK121224 65100-010 Other Administration Expense Christmas Party Catering $ 282.00
95(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [JK121224-2 65200-010 Filing Fees & Permits Recorder's Office $ 42.00
96|1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [JK122024 65200-010 Filing Fees & Permits Lien Filing $ 164.00
9711/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 (JK122724 64300-010 Office Supplies & Expense Desk Chair $ 299.00
98(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [CC121824 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 26.72
99(1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [CC122024 65100-010 Other Administration Expense Christmas Party Supplies $ 6.69

100|1/22/2025 Nevada State Bank EFT-1/22/25-11 [CC122724 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 32.08
101|1/22/2025 NV Energy EFT-1/22/25-04 (1790250114 50500-010 Utilities Plant Energy $ 14,804.01
102|1/22/2025 NV Energy EFT-1/22/25-05 (800250114 55300-010 Reservoir & Pump Utilities Pump Station Energy $ 3,085.47
103|1/22/2025 THE PARTS HOUSE 5859 179274 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 18.98
104|1/22/2025 THE PARTS HOUSE 5859 179685 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 53.98
105|1/22/2025 THE PARTS HOUSE 5859 179880 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 19.99
106|1/22/2025 Ring Central Inc EFT-1/22/25-06 (CD_001014524 64400-010 Telephone December VOIP $ 325.65
107|1/22/2025 COGEN SERVICE 5860 6800 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Cogen $ 2,500.00
108|1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN324467 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 72.00
109|1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN324466 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 72.00
110|1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN324462 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 100.00
111)1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN324762 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 1,465.00
112|1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN324729 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 43.00
113|1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN325073 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 72.00
114|1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN325060 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 44.00
115|1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN325033 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 43.00
116|1/22/2025 SILVER STATE ANALYTICAL LABS, INC. 5861 RN325011 52400-010 Lab Testing Lab Analysis $ 72.00
117|1/22/2025 SNELL & WILMER, LLP EFT-1/22/25-07 (2938772 71100-010 Legal Legal Services $ 992.50
118|1/22/2025 SOUTHWEST GAS CORP EFT-1/22/25-08 (250109 50500-010 Utilities SW Gas $ 1,676.27
119(1/22/2025 TESCO CONTROLS, INC. EFT-1/22/25-09 [0084651-IN 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 140.00
120|1/22/2025 TOWN OF MINDEN 5862 10125 50500-010 Utilities Water and Trash $ 733.40
121|1/22/2025 U-Rock Utility Equipment 5863 1257 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance HMS Wheel $ 2,699.16
122|1/22/2025 Ubeo Business Services EFT-1/22/25-10 (4761815 64500-010 Postage Billing Statement Mailings $ 1,528.43
123|1/22/2025 Ubeo Business Services EFT-1/22/25-10 (4761815 64310-010 Statement Billing Supplies Billing Statement Mailings $ 1,958.27
124|1/29/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5864 212750 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids $ 97.58

Page 4 of 5




CHECK REGISTER - GENERAL
1/1/25 - 1/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount
125|1/29/2025 BENTLY RANCH 5864 212734 50800-010 Sludge Removal Biosolids $ 219.80
126|1/29/2025 CAD PEST CONTROL SERVICES, INC 5865 99916 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Pest Control $ 200.00
127(1/29/2025 Chevron and Texaco Business Card Services EFT-1/29/25-01 [102274419 51500-010 Truck & Auto Expense Fuels $ 83.05
128|1/29/2025 JM Squared Associates, Inc. 5866 125-7911 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Pump Rebuild Parts $ 1,021.00
129|1/29/2025 Mesa Energy Systems 5867 974011681 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Actuator Valve Repair $ 1,922.87
130(1/29/2025 POWER & CONTROL SOLUTIONS, INC. EFT-1/29/25-02 [1608 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Belt Press Replacement Screen $ 5,247.00
131|1/29/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/29/25-03 (25-0013 71200-010 Engineering District Business $ 700.00
132|1/29/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/29/25-03 |25-0014 55100-010 Reservoir Repairs & Maintenance Effluent $ 800.00
133|1/29/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/29/25-03 [25-0015 71200-010 Engineering CMAR Contract $ 7,341.00
134|1/29/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/29/25-03 [25-0016 71200-010 Engineering Muller Lane MPA $ 1,101.25
135|1/29/2025 RESOURCE CONCEPTS, INC. EFT-1/29/25-03 (25-0012 71200-010 Engineering Plan Review Heybourne $ 330.00
136(1/29/2025 TESCO CONTROLS, INC. EFT-1/29/25-04 [0084700-IN 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 2,187.50
137(1/29/2025 TESCO CONTROLS, INC. EFT-1/29/25-04 [0083987-IN 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 560.00
138|1/29/2025 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY 5868 11590212 50600-010 Repairs & Maintenance Repairs and Maintenance $ 85.21

Total Amount of Checks (64 Checks) $ 177,802.26
Legend Capital

Breaker Failure Costs

Co-Gen Expenses

Page 5 of 5




CHECK REGISTER - PAYROLL
1/1/25 - 1/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount
1(1/3/2025 State Coll & Disb Unit - SCADU EFT-1/3/25-01 36-010325 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes Child Support - Bi-Weekly $ 163.38
2[1/3/2025 Voya Financial EFT-1/3/25-02 01032025 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes 457 Mutual Fund $ 2,585.00
3|1/3/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-010325-941 |FED 941 1/3/2025 CB STAFF  [20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 941 1/3/2025 CB STAFF $ 6,737.12
4(1/3/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-010325-941 |FED 1/3/2025 STAFF 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 1/3/2025 STAFF $ 406.47
5|1/3/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-010325-941 |FED 941 1/3/2025 STAFF 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 941 1/3/2025 STAFF $ 6,243.71
6|1/3/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-010325-DD DD 1/3/2025 STAFF 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 1/3/2025 STAFF $ 3,190.91
7(1/3/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-010325-DD DD 1/3/2025 STAFF 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 1/3/2025 STAFF $ 37,262.92
8(1/15/2025 JD EFT-1/15/25-01 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - JD $ 380.89
9(1/15/2025 BF EFT-1/15/25-02 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - BF $ 477.43

10(1/15/2025 JH EFT-1/15/25-03 121624 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - JH $ 86.16
11(1/15/2025 FJ EFT-1/15/25-04 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - FJ $ 366.21
12(1/15/2025 TS EFT-1/15/25-05 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - TS $ 364.48
13(1/15/2025 SK EFT-1/15/25-06 011525 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Medicare Reimbursement - SK $ 58.78
14(1/17/2025 State Coll & Disb Unit - SCADU EFT-1/17/25-01 36-011725 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes Child Support - Bi-Weekly $ 163.38
15(1/17/2025 Voya Financial EFT-1/17/25-02 01172025 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes 457 Mutual Fund $ 2,385.00
16]1/17/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-011725-941 |FED 1/17/2025 STAFF 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 1/17/2025 STAFF $ 6,228.85
17(1/17/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-011725-DD (DD 1/17/2025 STAFF 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 1/17/2025 STAFF $ 36,686.49
18(1/20/2025 Public Agency Compensation Trust EFT-1/20/25-01 102024 50200-010 Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits October 21, 2024 $ 7,491.50
19(1/20/2025 Voya Financial EFT-1/20/25-02 01312025 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes 457 Mutual Fund $ 2,385.00
20(1/31/2025 HealthEquity - ACH EFT-1/31/25-01 HSA01-2025 50200-010 Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits Jan HSA Contributions $ 2,545.80
21(1/31/2025 HOMETOWN HEALTH EFT-1/31/25-02 77101-044 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Jan 2025 Health Insurance $ 1,256.52
22(1/31/2025 HOMETOWN HEALTH EFT-1/31/25-02 77101-044 50200-020 Medical Benefits Jan 2025 Health Insurance $ 15,721.09
23|1/31/2025 METLIFE - GROUP BENEFITS EFT-1/31/25-03 01292025 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Dental & Life Insurance $ 385.76
24(1/31/2025 METLIFE - GROUP BENEFITS EFT-1/31/25-03 01292025 50200-020 Medical Benefits Dental & Life Insurance $ 1,252.96
25(1/31/2025 Nevada State Treasurer's Office EFT-1/31/25-04 36-0125 50200-010 Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits CS Handling Fee - Monthly $ 6.00
26(1/31/2025 State Coll & Disb Unit - SCADU EFT-1/31/25-05 36-013125 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes Child Support - Bi-Weekly $ 163.38
2711/31/2025 VSP VISION CARE, INC (AT) EFT-1/31/25-06 822065023 80900-010 Retiree Health Insurance Premiums Vision Insurance - Jan 2025 $ 91.44
28(1/31/2025 VSP VISION CARE, INC (AT) EFT-1/31/25-06 822065023 50200-020 Medical Benefits Vision Insurance - Jan 2025 $ 136.52
29(1/31/2025 Voya Financial EFT-1/31/25-07 02142025 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes 457 Mutual Fund $ 2,385.00
30(1/31/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-013125-941 |FED 941 1/31/2025 STAFF 20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 941 1/31/2025 STAFF $ 6,305.19
31|1/31/2025 Wells Fargo 941 ACH-013125-BRD |FED 941 1/31/2025 BOARD ~ [20300-010 Accrued Payroll Taxes FED 941 1/31/2025 BOARD $ 344.50

Page 1 of 2




CHECK REGISTER - PAYROLL

1/1/25 - 1/31/25

Line # Payment Date Vendor Check Name ACH/Check # Invoice Number GL Account Number GL Account Name Transaction Description Check Amount
32(1/31/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-013125-DD  |DD 1/31/2025 STAFF 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 1/31/2025 STAFF $ 36,847.72
33]1/31/2025 WF Used for Direct Deposit ACH-013125-BRD |DD 1/31/2025 BOARD 10000-116 Cash - Payroll Checking - Wells Fargo DD 1/31/2025 BOARD $ 2,222.75

Total Amount of Checks (30 Checks) $ 183,328.31

Page 2 of 2




MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT

Expenses versus Annual Budget
AN For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

LMGSD

N

YTD Remianing Budget Remaining
Actual Budget Budget $ Spent %  Budget %
Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025
PAYROLL
Salaries $848,005.87 $1,294,088.00  $446,982.13 65.48% 34.52%
Payroll Taxes & Employee Benefits $465,797.31 $822,858.00 $357,060.69 56.61% 43.39%

TOTAL PAYROLL $1,313,803.18 $2,117,846.00 $804,042.82 62.03% 37.97%



MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

YTD Remianing Budget Remaining
Actual Budget Budget $ Spent %  Budget %
Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025

6 PLANT EXPENSES

7 Safety $8,613.04 $12,000.00 $3,386.96 71.78% 28.22%
8 Plant Supplies (Processing Chemicals) $92,301.03 $162,750.00 $70,448.97 56.71% 43.29%
9 Utilities $106,007.00 $195,750.00 $89,743.00 54.15% 45.85%
10 Repairs & Maintenance $255,093.76 $325,000.00 $69,906.24 78.49% 21.51%
11 Mosquito Abatement $10,000.00 $10,000.00 0.00% 100.00%
12 Other Plant Expense $4,076.40 $6,500.00 $2,423.60 62.71% 37.29%
13 Sludge Removal $8,209.04 $18,000.00 $9,790.96 45.61% 54.39%
14 Education $2,320.10 $13,000.00 $10,679.90 17.85% 82.15%
15 TOTAL O & P EXPENSES $476,620.37 $743,000.00 $266,379.63 64.15% 35.85%



MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT

Expenses versus Annual Budget
AN For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

LMGSD

N

16 COLLECTION EXPENSES

17 Collection System - Supplies

18 Collection System - Cleaning/ TV / Repair & Maintenance
19 Truck & Auto Expense (Fuels)

20 Other Collection System Expense

21 TOTAL COLLECTION EXPENSES

YTD Remianing Budget Remaining
Actual Budget Budget $ Spent %  Budget %
Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025
$4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00% 100.00%
$9,608.25 $7,000.00 ($2,608.25) 137.26% (37.26%)
$7,371.48 $15,000.00 $7,628.52 49.14% 50.86%
$2,067.30 $1,000.00 ($1,067.30) 206.73%  (106.73%)
$19,047.03 $27,000.00 $7,952.97 70.54% 29.46%



LMGSD

N

22 LAB EXPENSES

23 Lab Supplies

24 Lab Testing

25 Lab Permitting

26 Lab Repairs & Maintenance
27 Other Lab Expenses

28 Pretreatment Testing

29 TOTAL LAB EXPENSES

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

YTD Remianing Budget Remaining

Actual Budget Budget $ Spent %  Budget %
Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025
$7,927.27 $7,000.00 ($927.27) 113.25% (13.25%)
$17,173.00 $18,000.00 $827.00 95.41% 4.59%
$2,641.05 $1,800.00 ($841.05) 146.73% (46.73%)
$5,492.08 $15,000.00 $9,507.92 36.61% 63.39%
$1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00% 100.00%

$18,525.00 $50,000.00 $31,475.00 37.05% 62.95%
$51,758.40 $92,800.00 $41,041.60 55.77% 44.23%



MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
Expenses versus Annual Budget

A For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRIC
SINCE 1964

N

30 RESERVOIR/EFFLUENT EXPENSES
31 Effluent Management - Repairs & Maintenance

32 Effluent Management - Utilities

33 TOTAL RERVOIR/EFFLUENT EXPENSES

YTD Remianing Budget Remaining
Actual Budget Budget $ Spent %  Budget %
Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025
$4,346.00 $20,000.00 $15,654.00 21.73% 78.27%
$3,504.92 $50,000.00 $46,495.08 7.01% 92.99%
$7,850.92 $70,000.00 $62,149.08 11.22% 88.78%



Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

LMGSD

N

34 GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
35 Office Supplies & Expense

36 Training/Education Expense

37 Cleaning &Kitchen Supplies

38 Statement Billing Supplies

39 Bank Charges

40 Telephone & Internet

41 Postage

42 Advertising & Publication

43 Software Services

44 Travel & Per Diem

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT

YTD Remianing Budget Remaining
Actual Budget Budget $ Spent %  Budget %
Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025
$4,709.06 $11,000.00 $6,290.94 42.81% 57.19%
$579.00 $5,000.00 $4,421.00 11.58% 88.42%
$4,796.20 $11,000.00 $6,203.80 43.60% 56.40%
$5,240.23 $6,000.00 $759.77 87.34% 12.66%
$18,732.63 $17,000.00 ($1,732.63) 110.19% (10.19%)
$14,782.88 $20,000.00 $5,217.12 73.91% 26.09%
$4,824.54 $10,500.00 $5,675.46 45.95% 54.05%
$197.25 $5,000.00 $4,802.75 3.95% 96.06%
$37,120.74 $52,500.00 $15,379.26 70.71% 29.29%
$4,951.80 $8,000.00 $3,048.20 61.90% 38.10%



LMGSD

N

45 Bad Debts

46 A/R Collection Expense

47 Insurance & Bonding

48 Other Administration Expense
49 Filing Fees & Permits

50 Office Equipment (Hardware)

51 TOTAL G&A

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

YTD Remianing Budget Remaining
Actual Budget Budget $ Spent %  Budget %

Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025
$1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00% 100.00%

($578.00) $1,700.00 $2,278.00 (34.00%) 134.00%

$78,708.98 $154,318.00 $75,609.02 51.00% 49.00%

$4,894.99 $4,000.00 ($894.99) 122.37% (22.37%)
$7,271.23 $12,000.00 $4,728.77 60.59% 39.41%
$6,271.27 $12,000.00 $5,728.73 52.26% 47.74%

$192,502.80 $331,018.00 $138,515.20 58.15% 41.85%



MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
Expenses versus Annual Budget
For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

Al SN N
MINDEN. GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
SINCE 1964

N

YTD Remianing Budget Remaining
Actual Budget Budget $ Spent %  Budget %
Fiscal 2025 2025 Variance Fiscal 2025 Fiscal 2025
52 PROFESSIONAL FEES
53 Legal $10,429.50 $50,000.00 $39,570.50 20.86% 79.14%
54 Engineering $31,455.30 $120,000.00 $88,544.70 26.21% 73.79%
55 IT/Tech Professional Services $9,715.98 $30,000.00 $20,284.02 32.39% 67.61%
56 Accounting & Audit $6,000.00 $31,500.00 $25,500.00 19.05% 80.95%
57 TOTAL PROFESSIONAL FEES $57,600.78 $231,500.00 $173,899.22 24.88% 75.12%



MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT

Expenses versus Annual Budget
AN For the Seven Months Ending Friday, January 31, 2025

LMGSD

N

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV
1 CAPITAL EXPENSES
2 Collection System Rehab 15400-020
3 Collection System Rehab-Old Budget Years 16400-010 (191,472.94) 327.50 214,228.70 (128,907.72)
4  Semi Truck 16600-050
5 Boiler Replacement #2 16800-030 + 16800-020 3,450.00 7,781.00 1,887.50
6 Clean & Inspect Digester 16800-050
7 Rehab Concrete in Primary Clarifier 16800-070
8 Plant PLC & Infrastucture Replacement 15600-030 2,735.00
9 Breaker Emergency Repair Reclass 15500-020 1,600.00 1,600.00 17,483.96
10 Office Addition Design 15600-020
11 Office/Computer Equipment 15600-010 5,166.59 61,174.69
12 ARRA Reimbursement 22500 38,583.32

13 TOTAL (151,289.6 3,777.50 228,776.2 22,106.46 (67,733.03)



MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE

ACCOUNT SUMMARY STATEMENT

For the Seven Months Ending January 31, 2024

Jul Aug Sep Oct \ Nov \ Dec \ Jan \ Feb \ Mar Apr May Jun Total
Line# General Account
1|Balance 1st day of Month $ 2,705,314.38 | § 3,036,144.95 | $ 2,958,187.94 | § 3,638,528.62 | $ 3,824,233.86 | $ 3,918,249.00 | $ 3,903,931.87 $
2|Cash Receipts
3|User Fees $ 198,110.75 | $ 190,380.45 | $ 15,526.55 | $ 186,700.17 | $ 37,227.20 | $ 21394249 | $ 343,544.86 $ 1,185,432.47
4| Connection Fees $ 1,325.50 | $ 165.00 | $ 1,661.00 $ 3,151.50
5 |Capacity Fees $ 91,806.00 | $ 17,160.00 | $ 172,744.00 | $ 113,256.00 | $ 127,842.00 $ 57,200.00 $ 580,008.00
6 |Permit Fee Income $ 200.00 $ 200.00
7 |Acreage Fees/Annexation Fee
8| Consolidated Tax (SCCRT) $ 11,221.62 | $ 11,22162 | $ 11,221.62 | $ 11,221.62 | $ 11,221.62 | $ 11,221.62 | $ 11,221.62 $ 78,551.34
9|Ad Volorem $ 194.96 | $ 59,981.04 | $ 167,832.33 | $ 25,742.88 | $ 96,340.86 | $ 4,465.87 | $ 29,112.81 $ 383,670.75
10 |Pass-Through Reimbursement $ 1,938.75 | $ 4,041.25 $ 5,980.00
11|GRGID $ 198,649.58 $ 466,924.12 | ¢ 110,316.00 $ 198,698.57 $ 974,588.27
12 |Health Ins Reimbursement $ 83.47 $ 8347 | $ 8347 | $ 83.47 $ 166.94 $ 500.82
13|Finance Charge Increase/(Decrease) Accrued $ -
14 |Misc Income Increase/(Decrease) $ -
15 |Total Cash Receipts $ 503,330.63 | $ 282,949.36 | $ 836,193.09 | $ 447,320.14 | § 272,715.15 | § 428,328.55 | $ 441,246.23 | $ - $ $ 3,212,083.15
16
17|Cash Paid Out
18 |Capital Expenses $ (189,872.94)| $ 3,777.50 | $ 220,995.29 | $ 20,218.96 | $ (67,733.03)| $ 49,764.83 | $ 3,071.48 $ 40,222.09
19 [Plant Expenses $ 141,874.00 | $ 65,822.20 | $ 38,948.32 | $ 53,731.01 | $ 50,820.05 | $ 4121573 | § 83,933.59 $ 476,344.90
20| Collections Expenses $ 8,474.02 | $ 3,359.32 | $ 2,700.39 | $ 1,13145 | § 1,432.63 | $ 1,061.20 | $ 888.02 $ 19,047.03
21 |Lab Expenses $ 16,735.05 | $ 533211 | $ 4,778.15 | $ 5,508.00 | $ 10,130.39 | $ 6,932.69 | $ 2,170.00 $ 51,586.39
22 |Reservoir/Effluent Expenses $ 39250 | $ 315.00 | $ 1,689.75 | $ 156.20 | $ 676.33 | $ 735.67 | $ 3,385.47 $ 7,350.92
23| General & Administrative $ 38,869.93 | $ 27,510.24 | $ 22,048.01 | $ 25,280.05 | $ 27,009.34 | $ 34,568.06 | § 18,720.49 $ 194,006.12
24 |Payroll-Related Expenses $ -
25 |Professional Fees $ 6,027.50 | $ 4,790.00 | $ 14,692.50 | $ 5,589.23 | § 6,364.30 | § 8,367.50 | $ 11,769.75 $ 57,600.78
26 | Total Expenses $ 22,500.06 | $ 110,906.37 | § 305,852.41 | § 111,614.90 | § 28,700.01 | $ 142,645.68 | $ 123,938.80 | $ - $ $ 846,158.23
27
28 |Prepaid Claims Increase/(Decrease) $ -
29 |Accrued Expenses $ - $ -
30| Transfers from Other Accounts
31| Transfer to Other Accounts (Decrease) $ (150,000.00)| $ (250,000.00)| $ (150,000.00)| $ (150,000.00)| $ (150,000.00)| $ (300,000.00)| $ (150,000.00) $ (1,300,000.00)
32
33| Total Balancs last day of Month $ 3,036,144.95 | $ 2,958,187.94 | $ 3,638,528.62 | $ 3,824,233.86 | $ 3,918,249.00 | $ 3,903,931.87 | $ 4,071,239.30 | $ - 1$

Page 1 of 2




MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE

ACCOUNT SUMMARY STATEMENT

For the Seven Months Ending January 31, 2024

Jul Aug Sep Oct \ Nov \ Dec \ Jan \ Feb Mar Apr May Jun Total
36 Payroll Account
37 |Balance 1st of Month $ 59,198.70 | $ 42,873.69 58,093.46 50,120.24 | $ 35,335.22 | § (12,553.84)| $ 167,593.20 | $ -
38 | Transfer from Checking $ 150,000.00 | $ 250,000.00 150,000.00 150,000.00 | $ 150,000.00 | $ 300,000.00 | $ 150,000.00 $ 1,300,000.00
39 |Interest $ 126.86 | $ 179.01 99.84 63.17 | $ 57.18 | $ 50.10 | $ 41.60 $ 617.76
40 $ - $ -
41 |Payroll Expenses $ (166,451.87) ($234,959.24) ($158,073.06) ($164,848.19) ($197,946.24) ($119,903.06) ($196,386.08) $ (1,238,567.74)
42 |Balance Last day of Month $ 42,873.69 | $ 58,093.46 50,120.24 35,335.22 | $ (12,553.84)| $ 167,593.20 | $ 121,248.72 | $ -
45 LGIP POOL Account
46 |Balance 1st of Month $ 1,282,936.01 | $ 1,250,014.12 1,255,674.23 1,261,381.63 | $ 1,266,750.84 | § 1,271,979.26 | $ 1,276,928.78
47 | Transfer from Checking
48 |Interest Earned $ 566143 | $ 5,660.11 5,707.40 5,369.21 | § 522842 | $ 4,949.52 | § 4,976.41 $ 37,552.50
49| ARRA Payment $ (38,583.32) ($38,583.31) ($77,166.63)
50| Transfer to Other Accounts
51| Balance Last day of Month $ 1,250,014.12 | $ 1,255,674.23 1,261,381.63 1,266,750.84 | $ 1,271,979.26 | $ 1,276,928.78 | $ 1,243,321.88 | $ -
53 ARRA Bond Restricted
54 | Balance 1st of Month $ 90,046.30 | $ 90,443.84 90,853.55 91,266.69 | § 91,655.35 | $ 92,033.82 | § 92,392.10
55 | Transfer from Other Accounts $ -
56 | Interest Earned $ 397.54 | § 409.71 413.14 388.66 | $ 37847 | $ 358.28 | § 360.22 $ 2,706.02
57 | Transfer to Other Accounts
58| Balance Last day of Month $ 90,443.84 | $ 90,853.55 91,266.69 91,655.35 | § 92,033.82 | $ 92,392.10 | $ 92,752.32 | $ -
61 MEER
62| Balance 1st of Month $ 5,183,926.28 | $ 5,204,541.75 5,225,094.65 5,245,097.90 | $ 5,266,060.31 | $ 5,286,004.28 | $ 5,306,325.82
63 | Earned on Investments $ 21,481.07 | $ 21,066.62 20,869.49 21,828.97 | § 20,81043 | $ 21,187.85 | § 21,230.73 $ 148,475.16
64 |Net Realized Gain/Loss $ 352.06
65| Investment Fund Fees $ (865.60)| $ (865.78) (866.24) (866.56)| $ (866.46) ($866.31) ($866.46) $ (6,063.41)
66 | Transfer to Other Accounts
67 |Balance Last day of Month $ 5,204,541.75 | $ 5,225,094.65 5,245,097.90 5,266,060.31 | $ 5,286,004.28 | $ 5,306,325.82 | $ 5,326,690.09 | $ -
69 Petty Cash
70 |Balance 1st of Month $ 500.00 | $ 500.00 500.00 500.00 | $ 500.00 | § 500.00 | $ 500.00
71 |Expenses $ -
72 |Reimbursements $ -
73 |Balance Last day of Month $ 500.00 | $ 500.00 500.00 500.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 500.00 | $ 500.00 | $ -
74
75 TOTAL CASH ALL ACCOUNTS $ 9,624,518.35 $ 9,588,403.83 10,286,895.08 10,484,535.58 $ 10,556,212.52 $ 10,747,671.77 $ 10,855,752.31 $ =

Page 2 of 2




Agenda Item 3

District Manager’s Report

Items in this Section Include:

v’ March 2025 District Manager’s Report
v' Capacity Report for February 2025



ASAANN

M G S D Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District
SINCE 1964 District Managerls Report
March 4, 2025

CAPACITY ALLOCATIONS/PURCHASES:
e 12 EDUs sold to Heybourne Meadows

WILL SERVES LETTERS ISSUED:
e No will-serves issued this month

MEETINGS ATTENDED AND SCHEDULED:

02/04 Finance committee meeting with Ben from
Meeder. We reviewed our current
investments.

02/11 Pineview Estates meeting with USDA, SRF,
and Pine View staff to clarify the payment
process.

02/18 MGSD lining project interviews for CMAR
with RCI staff. The two candidates are
Insituform and Q&D Construction.

VENDORS AND CONTRACTS:

None

STAFF/OFFICE ITEMS:

Admin staff are currently training with POOL/PACT
for HR Compliance.

Plant staff are attending the NVWEA Conference in
Reno for CEUs.

PROJECTS IN THE DISTRICT:

Martin’s Meadows on Gilman Street are almost
built out.

Heybourne Meadows is moving quickly, but there
has been no final survey conducted.

The Downs are at about 50% buildout.

The Village at Monte Vista is at about 75%
buildout.

LINE REHABILITATION AND PLANT IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS:

e We are continuing the rebuild on the Digester Mixing Pump #2.

e Working toward completion of the auxiliary chlorine dosing pump system.

e We are constructing a concrete pad for the new breaker and switchgear.

e We have done the first pre-spring round of weed abatement.

e The new polymer used for the Belt Press has shown a reduction in use and cost compared to the old

polymer we were using.

e A new boiler is online, and a state inspection will occur in March for all the boilers.

OTHER:

e We are waiting for HDR to present the bid documents for the Concrete Rehab for the Clarifiers.

Respectfully submitted,
Peter V. Baratti, District Manager



A MONTHLY REPORT OF
2N CAPACITY SOLD

et For the month of February 2025
Date Project Name Developer Address EsDolIJ ds Eé:)s:’"; 9 Amount Collected Approved By | Comments
Capacity Total
2/14/2025 |Heybourne Meadows Lennar Multiple 12.00 0.00{ $ 68,640.00 | $ 68,640.00

0.00| $ - |$ -

0.00| $ - 1% -

0.00| $ - 1% -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

$ - 19 -

_ $ HE -

TOTAL EDU's
SOLD 12.000 $ 68,640.00 $ 68,640.00




Agenda Item 6

February 4" 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes

Items in this Section Include:

v February 4" 2025 Regular Meeting Minutes



Board of Trustees
Minutes of Regular Meeting
Tuesday, February 4, 2025

5:00 P.M. | Board Room
Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District
1790 Hwy. 395
Minden, Nevada

SINCE 1964

Board Members Present: Board Members Absent: Staff Members Present: Staff Members Absent:
Ted Thran Sondra Condron Peter Baratti None

Dan Griffith Cliff Simpson

Chris Shorten Jessica Kneefel

Michele Wagner LaVonne Ghanavati

Haley Mosegard

Bruce Scott

Bill Peterson
Others Present: Niki Neilon, Greg Reed, Lumos & Associates

1. Meeting called to order at 5:00 p.m. by Ted Thran.

2. Public Comment: There was no public comment.

3. District Manager’s Report: Peter Baratti summarized his report and also reported that he received a letter
from Greg Reed with a proposal to renegotiate the GRGID contract. The item would be officially agendized in the
near future for board action.

4.Chairman’s Comment: There was no Chairman’s comment.

5. Claims Review and Approval: There were no comments or discussion regarding the

Motion: To approve the claims received for December, 2024 in the amount of $97,991.34 and the payroll-related
expenses paid during December, 2024 in the amount of $160,658.83.

Made by: Chris Shorten
Seconded by: Michele Wagner
Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes: Thran, Wagner, Shorten, Griffith
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: Sondra Condron




MGSD
February 4, 2025

N 4 Page 2

6. Minutes of January 7", 2025 Regular Board Meeting and January 24", 2025 Special Board Meeting:

Motion: To approve the minutes of the January 7 2025 Regular Board Meeting.

Made by: Dan Griffith
Seconded by: Chris Shorten
Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes: Thran, Shorten, Wagner, Griffith
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: Sondra Condron

Motion: To approve the minutes of the January 24 2025 Special Board Meeting.

Made by: Chris Shorten
Seconded by: Michele Wagner
Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes: Thran, Shorten, Wagner, Griffith
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: Sondra Condron

7. Designation of Auditor: Niki Neilon stated she believed the District’s contract had expired after this
current audit. Staff and Niki agreed that they would do further research.

8. Kingslane Homeowners Association: Mara Quiroga went over a presentation for the Board regarding
a partnership to rehabilitate the sewer system within the Kingslane HOA. Kingslane HOA would need
assistance from MGSD to obtain SRF funds needed to complete the project since privately owned
systems are not eligible to apply for the funding.

Bruce Scott mentioned the HOA has asked MGSD to take over their system several times. He added that
the proposal, with some assurances on the costs that MGSD would accrue would be minimal, would be
worth consideration from the Board.

Vice Chair Shorten commented that it would be the right thing to do for the community.




MGSD
February 4, 2025

N 4 Page 3

Motion: To pursue a partnership with Kingslane HOA to begin the initial pre-application phase for the SRF grant.

Made by: Chris Shorten
Seconded by: Michele Wagner
Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes: Thran, Shorten, Wagner, Griffith
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: Sondra Condron

9. Continued Item — Restricted Funds: Niki Neilon clarified the restricted funds allocations to the
Board. Vice Chairman Shorten asked what the benefit was for creating the restricted funds as well as the
precautions of dissolving them. Bill Peterson stated that the resolutions creating the restricted funds
were worded in a way that the board would be able to reallocate the funds via a resolution.

Niki clarified that any time the Board wanted to engage in a project that the funds were allocated for, the
Board would then need to make a resolution to use those restricted funds for the specified project.

It was discussed by Niki and the Board that one of the issues with this past audit was that there weren’t
enough funds to cover operations costs without utilizing the restricted funds, which were spent without a
resolution.

Vice Chairman Shorten said he was trying to consider Trustee Condron’s concerns from the last meeting
regarding restricted funds since she was not present at the meeting today. He stated it seemed
appropriate to unrestrict the funds for audit purposes in order to show a positive operation fund.

Motion: To unrestrict the District’s restricted funds.

Made by: Chris Shorten
Seconded by: Michele Wagner
Vote: Motion carried.
Ayes: Thran, Shorten, Wagner, Griffith
Nays: None
Abstain: None
Absent: Sondra Condron

10. Attorney-Client Conference: Bill Peterson reported he didn’t have anything new for the Board.

11. Engineer’s Report: Bruce Scott reported Bently is proposing to sell a portion of their property that is
encumbered by an easement to MGSD. He added that he is also going to be conducting interviews for the
CMAR contract for the rehab of the Highway 88 lining and offered the Board members an opportunity to
sitin on the interviews




MGSD
February 4, 2025

N 4 Page 4

12. Administrative Report by Staff: There were no comments or discussion regarding the
Administrative Report

13. Board Comment: There was no board comment.

14. Public Comment: Greg Reed approached the Board with his proposal to update the GRGID
contract. Discussion followed. No action was taken during this item.

15. Meeting adjourned 7:20 p.m.

Approved by the Board of Trustees as presented on:

By
Date Haley Freeman, District Secretary




Agenda Item 8

CMAR Contract Award

Items in this Section Include:

v" Results of CMAR Selection and Recommend Award from Resource
Concepts, Inc



CARSON CITY OFFICE
340 N. Minnesota St.
Carson City, NV 89703-4152

Ph:  (775) 883-1600
Fax: (775) 883-1656

Resource Concepts Inc

Engineering « Surveying « Water Rights
Resource & Environmental Services

WWW.rci-nv.com

Memorandum

DATE: February 21, 2025
TO: Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District - Board
FROM: Bruce Scott, P.E. — MGSD Engineer

Greg Stedfield, PE — Project Manager
RCI PROJECT: 24-002.3 2025 Rehab Project
SUBJECT: Results of CMAR Selection and Recommend Award

Resource Concepts, Inc. for, and on behalf of MGSD, received CMAR Proposals for the above referenced
project, from the following two CMAR Contractors:

Insituform Technologies, LLC Q&D Construction, LLC
993 Bending River Rd W 1050 S. 21° Street
Salk Lake City, UT 84104 Sparks, NV 89431

All proposals were evaluated and deemed to be complete, and of sufficient quality to receive an invitation
to attend an interview and presentation. A five-person interview panel consisting of two engineers from
RCI, Bruce Scott, P.E. and Greg Stedfield, P.E., MGSD Manager, Peter Baratti, with MGSD employees
Andrew Marshall and Cliff Simpson, was organized to receive presentations from the respondents. On
February 18, 2025, interviews were conducted for both Q&D Construction and Insituform which consisted
of a presentation followed by a question and answer period.

The two respondent companies were deemed to be highly qualified and leaders in the field of trenchless
underground pipe repair and manhole rehabilitation. Each firm possess their own in-house and self-
performing Cured in Place Pipe (CIPP) installation, however, as CMAR contractors, each understood that
it is their duty to assist in the design and selection of the specific method and materials used to bring
about the best value to the district, even if it means bidding out items which they may normally self-
perform. Q&D Construction and Insituform have extensive Nevada CMAR experience, and both have their
own CIPP division.

The composite scores from the interviewers were 84 for Q&D Construction and 66 for Insituform. It
should be noted that the selection process has been based exclusively on qualifications to perform the
construction and familiarity of the area as well as knowledge of the Nevada Department of Transportation
(NDOT).

2025-02-21 MGSD 2025 Rehab CMAR - Recomend Award MMO.docx



MEMORANDUM
2025 Rehab Project
February 21, 2025
Page 2 of 2

After the interview and the scoring (see attached scoring rubric published with the RFP), it is
recommended that the Board award the CMAR project to Q&D Construction, LLC, who scored the
highest during the interview. Q&D exhibited an in-depth knowledge of the Minden/Gardnerville area
as well as a close working relationship with NDOT. A summary of the scoring results is attached for
your review.

2025-02-21 MGSD 2025 Rehab CMAR - Recomend Award MMO.docx



CARSON CITY OFFICE
340 N. Minnesota St.
Carson City, NV 897034152

Ph: (775) 883-1600
Resource Concepts Inc Fax: (775) 883-1656
Engineering « Surveying « Water Rights

Resource & Evironmental Services

WWW.rci-nv.com

DATE: February 18, 2025
RCI PROJECT: MGSD — 2025 Rehab Project INTERVIEWER:
SUBIJECT: CMAR Short-list for Interview

Interview Scoring

INTERVIEWS — SELECTION CRITERIA

Total
Possible

Q&D INSITUFORM

1. Staff/ Team Qualifications:

a. Quality / Experience of firm 30
b. Team Composition Points
c. Quality / Experience of key personnel
2. Project Experience:
a. Number of Nevada CMAR Projects managed by the
applicant in the last five years. 3 0
Points
b. Relative Projects
3. Project Management Approach and Approach to Quality 20
Control Points
4. Certificate of Eligibility and Preference Affidavit 5
Points
TOTAL 85
Points
NOTES:

MGSD 2025 Rehab Project - Interview Scoring.docx



Agenda Item 10

District Manager Annual Review

Items in this Section Include:

v' Notice of Meeting to Peter Baratti

v' Proof of Service of Notice of Meeting to Peter Baratti

v' Memorandum from Jessica Kneefel, dated February 6, 2025

v’ Total Value Compensation Statement FY 24-25

v' Last Year’s Performance Evaluation, 5/1/2023 to 4/1/2024

v' Current Employment Contract 7/1/2024 to 6/30/25, automatically renewed
to 6/30/26 per Paragraph 2.a on Page 1

v' District Manager Job Description

v' District Manager List of Duties



MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRIC

SINCE 1964

N4

February 6, 2025

Mr. Peter V. Baratti
1745 Oakwood
Minden, NV 89423

SUBJECT:  Notice of Meeting of the MGSD Board of Trustees for Annual
Performance Evaluation and Possibility to Consider Your Character,
Alleged Misconduct, or Health

Dear Mr. Baratti:

This letter will serve to notify you of your annual performance review by the MGSD
Board of Trustees at its regular meeting on March 4, 2025. The meeting will begin at
5:00 p.m. at the MGSD Administrative Office, 1790 Hwy. 395, Minden, Nevada. This
meeting will be an open meeting, in accordance with NRS 233.031.1(b).

The Board may consider the following topics during the performance review: your
performance as District Manager, your job description, your job duties and matters
properly related thereto, as well as your character, alleged misconduct, competence, and
physical or mental health.

You are invited to attend the meeting, and you may have an attorney or other
representative of your choosing present at the meeting. You may also present written
evidence, provide testimony, and present witnesses. Please be aware that under NRS
233.031.1(b), the Board may not adjourn to a closed session to consider these items, and
all testimony will be given during an open meeting.

If the Board determines it necessary after considering your performance, your character,
alleged misconduct, professional competence, or physical or mental health, it may also

take administrative action against you at this meeting.

This informational statement is in lieu of any notice that may be required pursuant to
NRS Chapter 241.

Sincerely,

Jessica J. Kneefel
Human Resources Representative

1790 Hwy. 395 ¢ Minden, Nevada 89423 e 775-782-3546 ¢ 775-782-4915 fax



PROOF OF SERVICE

I, Jessica J. Kneefel, hereby state that I served the foregoing Notice of Meeting of the
Board to consider character, alleged misconduct, competence, or health

2; By personally serving it to Peter Baratti at 1790 Hwy 395, Minden, NV
on February 6, 2025
By depositing it in the United States Mail, postage prepaid,
Certified Mail No.
on this day of , 20

Jessic J.“Kf.le fel ) Date / /

—_— s
1790 Hwy. 395 » Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 - 775-782-4915 fax



e MGSD
MEMORANDUM
DATE: February 6, 2025
TO: MGSD Board of Trustees
FROM: Jessica Kneefel

SUBJECT:  Annual Review for the District Manager

Information for District Manager Annual Review:

Current Salary for District Manager: $145,000
Last Salary Increase: April 2024 (prior salary: $132,500)

Current Benefits for District Manager:

Leave Taken during FY 24-25 (thru 2/06/25):

Other Benefits:

Workers” Compensation
Employee Assistant Program
Shirts, Jackets, Boots

Health Insurance (all employee, portion family)
PERS

Medicare

Vacation Leave

Sick Leave

Family Sick Leave

Vacation Leave: 24.00 hours
Vacation Leave Remaining: 259.96 hours
Regular Sick Leave: 24.00 hours
Doctor Sick Leave: 16.00 hours
Family Sick Leave: 0.00 hours
Sick Leave Remaining: 698.46 hours (829.18 hours)

457 Plan
11 Paid Holidays

1790 Hwy. 395 ¢ Minden, Nevada 89423 e 775-782-3546 ¢ 775-782-4915 fax



MGSD
C TOTAL VALUE COMPENSATION STATEMENT FY 2024-2025
i . Summarized below is your projected Total
Employee: Peter Baratti Compensation Statement for the fiscal year. While
Title: District Manager cash compensation is the largest portion of your total

Your
Contribution MGSD Contribution
Cash Compensation

compensation, a significant portion is provided through
indirect pay for health insurance, retirement, and other
benefits.

Salary: $145,000.00
Bonus: $0.00
Total Cash Compensation $145,000.00
Insurance:
Medical PPO Gold Emp+Spouse+2 Children $0.00 $31,992.00
Medical - HSA N/A $0.00 $0.00
Dental Emp+Spouse+2 Children $0.00 $1,440.00
Vision Emp+Spouse+2 Children $0.00 $314.16
Life / AD&D Employee+Child+Spouse $0.00 $253.68
Subtotal - Insurance** $0.00 $33,999.84
Workers' Comp $0.00 $6,902.00
Total Insurance $0.00 $40,901.84
Retirement
PERS $48,575.00
Medicare $2,102.50 $2,102.50
Total Retirement $2,102.50 $50,677.50
TOTAL COMPENSATION $236,579.34

In addition to the compensation and benefits mentioned in the chart, you also are provided:

Employee Assistance Program 15 days Vacation Leave
Uniform Shirts, Jackets 10 days Sick Leave
Safety & Personal Protective Equipment 5 days Family Sick Leave

DOTotal Cash
Compensation

OTotal Insurance

DOTotal Retirement

=

12 Paid Holidays
Paid Jury Duty Leave



MGSD

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT

SINCE 1964

Manager Name:

Peter V. Baratti

DISTRICT MANAGER PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

Rating Period: From: 5/1/2023 To: 4/1/2024

Rating Scale Definitions:

) 2 - Needs 3 - Meets 4 - Exceeds 5 - Far Exceeds Expectations
1 - Unsatisfactory ] ) )

Improvement Expectations Expectations / Outstanding

Inadequate Performance Capable, Strong performance |Superior performance that
performance thatis |demonstrates satisfactory that frequently consistently exceeds job
consistently below weakness in performance that |exceeds requirements. Continually
job requirements and |accomplishing consistently meets |expectations. demonstrates willingness to
problematic. Shows [performance and occasionally Demonstrates assume additional
little or no initiative |expectations and does |exceeds strong knowledge [responsibilities, and makes
or urgency to not consistently meet |expectations. and ability to significant contributions

improve
performance.

the standards of the
position.

Errors are generally
minimal and self-
corrected.
Demonstrates
effective leadership

perform essential
functions of
position and seeks
for ways to
improve.

beyond normal expecations.

Page 1 of 10




I. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

with clear report of anticipated
issues that could come before the
Board

Shorten: 4.5 (Very forward-thinking)

Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 4
Wilson: 5

EVALUATION AREA NOTES RATING
1. Relationship with Board of Trustees Avg.| 4.1
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: | condron:4 Condron: 4.3

e Effectively implements policies Shorten: 4 Shorten: 4.1
and programs approved by the Smallwood: 4.1 Smallwood: 4.1
Board of Trustees Thran: 3 Thran: 3.4

Wilson: 4.5 Wilson: 4.5
Reporting to the Board of Trustees Condron: 4.5
is timely, clear, concise, and Shorten: 4
thorough Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 4
Wilson: 4.5
Accepts direction and instructions Condron: 4
in a positive manner; listens to Shorten: 4
and considers ideas from the Smallwood: 4.1
Board Thran: 3
Wilson: 4
Keeps the Board of Trustees Condron: 4.5
informed of current plans and Shorten: 4
activities of MGSD Smallwood:4.1
Thran: 4
Wilson: 5
Keeps the Board of Trustees Condron: 4
informed of new developments in | shorten: 4
legislation, governmental Smallwood: 4.1
practices and regulations Thran: 3
Wilson: 4
Keeps the Board of Trustees Condron: 4.5
informed of activities of County Shorten: 4
development-related activities Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4.5
Provides the Board of Trustees Condron: 4.5

Page 2 of 10




e Ensures MGSD's website is
updated with current
administrative and Board-related

Condron: 4.5 (Website completed)
Shorten: 4.5 (New website looks great!)
Smallwood: 4.5 (Yes, updated)

information Thran: 3
Wilson: 4.5
® Provides communication to the Condron: 4
public on matters affecting the Shorten: 4
District Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4

2. Public Relations Avg.| 4.1
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: Condron: 4.5 Condron: 4.4
® Projects a positive public image; is Shorten: 4 Shorten: 4.1
courteous to the public Smallwood: 4.6 (Always presents a professional Smallwood: 4.3
image) Thran: 3.5
Thran: 4 Wilson: 4.4
Wilson: 4.5
e Maintains relationships with Condron: 4.5
representatives from other Shorten: 4
government agencies Smallwood: 4
Thran: 4
Wilson: 4.5

Page 3 of 10




system needs and problems;
identifies root causes; addresses
problems in ways that lead to
innovative and long-term
solutions

supplies to rebuild items: Example: Pista Grit)
Shorten: 5 (Peter's explanations of plant problems/
needs show his expertise)

Smallwood: 5

Thran: 4

Wilson: 5

e Consistently makes informed
decisions and provides
recommendations based on
available and hard-to-find
information; utilizes information
that is relevant, current, and clear

Condron: 4
Shorten: 4
Smallwood: 4.5
Thran: 4
Wilson: 4.5

e Follows up on pending issues and
instructions to ensure resolution

Condron: 4

Shorten: 4

Smallwood: 4.5 (Continue to identify all
accounts. Clean up voter area.)

Thran: 4

Wilson: 4.5

EVALUATION AREA NOTES RATING
3. Effective Leadership Avg| 4.4
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: Condron: 4 Condron: 4.2
® Appears to delegate appropriately Shorten: 4 Shorten: 4.4
Smallwood: 4.6 Smallwood: 4.6
Thran: 4 Thran: 4
Wilson: 5 Wilson: 4.8
e Provides effective and appropriate| condron: 4
training for staff Shorten: 4.5 (Cross-training is ongoing and vital to
cost savings and job satisfaction)
Smallwood: 4.5 (Continue to cross-train for good
of MGSD)
Thran: 4
Wilson: 5
e |dentifies plant and collection Condron: 5 (Effectively instructs staff to utilize existing

Page 4 of 10




budget

e Controls expenditures in
accordance with approved budget

Condron: 5 (Outstanding job saving the
District money when possible)
Shorten: 4

Smallwood: 4.1

Thran: 3

Wilson: 4.5

e Works with staff and outside
contractors to ensure audit
findings are addressed and
resolved in a timely manner

Condron: 4
Shorten: 4
Smallwood: 4.6
Thran: 4
Wilson: 4.5

e Provides accurate reports and
information in a timely manner

Condron: 5 (Extremely detailed reports)
Shorten: 4

Smallwood: 5

Thran: 3

Wilson: 5

4. Fiscal Management Avg. 4.2
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: Condron: 4 Condron: 4.5
e Utilizes resources, including Shorten: 4 Shorten: 4
expertise of staff/Board members,| Smallwood: 4.1 Smallwood: 4.5
to prepare a realistic annual Thran: 4 Thran: 3.5
Wilson: 4.5 Wilson: 4.6

Page 5 of 10




EVALUATION AREA NOTES RATING
5. Intergovernmental Affairs Avg.| 4.1
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: | Condron: 4 Condron: 4.1
Shorten: 4 Shorten: 3.8
e Maintains effective Smallwood: 4.5 Smallwood: 4.3
communication with local, Thran: 3 Thran: 3
regional, state, and federal Wilson: 5 Wilson: 4.6
government agencies
e Contributes to good government |Condron: 4.5
through regular participationin  [Shorten: 4

local, regional, state agency, and
business-related organization
meetings and relationships

Smallwood: 4.5 (Please continue to attend Chamber
and Douglas County pre-app meetings. Thank you)
Thran: 3

Wilson: 5

e Lobbies effectively with legislators
and other agencies regarding the
interests and needs of MGSD,
where needed

Condron: 4
Shorten: 3
Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4

® Ensures MGSD's interests and
standards are communicated to
and recognized by local, state, and
federal government agencies

Condron: 4
Shorten: 4
Smallwood: 4.1
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4.5

Page 6 of 10




6. Professional Job-Related Competencies Avg.| 4.4
Example behaviors that Meet Expectations: | Condron: 5 (Recycle usable patrs to utilize forin- | - '/ ¢
e Maintains current technical house projects thus saving money for MGSD) Shorten: 4.5
knowledge and ability to Shorten: 5 ) o Smallwood: 4.8
sufficiently manage tasks and fmallwo?d). 4.5 (Continue forward-thinking long Thran: 3.5
i erm goals Wilson: 4.8
projects Thran: 4
Wilson: 5
® Pursues expanded mastery of Condron: 4
knowledge and abilities of Shorten: 4
leadership position and skills Smallwood: 4.6
Thran: 3
Wilson: 4.5
e Maintains State and Federal Condron: 5
mandated certification Shorten: 4
Smallwood: 5+
Thran: 3
Wilson: 5
e Combines technical knowledge Condron: 4
with creativity to produce value- | shorten: 5

added results

Smallwood: (Resourcefulness in use of staff and
existing infrastructure in creative ways to benefit
District)

Thran: 4

Wilson: 4.5

Page 7 of 10




ADDITIONAL COMMENTS BY THE BOARD:

Shorten: Your expertise, energy, and direction continue to be great assets to MGSD. Your dedication
is appreciated.

Thran: Comments to be made at meeting.

Il. ACHIEVEMENTS OF NOTE FOR THIS EVALUATION PERIOD:

Condron:

1. Received award for Manager of a System of the Year from Nevada Rural Water recognizing the excellent
job he has done for MGSD.

2. Finished the website and mission statement.

3. Gave new trustees an informative and detailed tour of the plant and surrounding area.

Shorten: Rebuilding the Pista Grit recently put back into operation. Successful navigation through the process of
implementing rate increases.

Smallwood: Thank you for your dedication to MGSD.

Wilson: In my opinion, Peter has come a long way in growing into the job of District Manager. Peter, continue
to take as many management classes as you can. | know you are very busy.

lll. ITEMS FOR IMPROVEMENT FOR THIS EVALUATION PERIOD:

Page 8 of 10



IV. SUMMARY RATING

2 - Needs 3 - Meets 4 - Exceeds 5 - Far Exceeds Expectations

1 - Unsatisfactory . ) ]
Improvement Expectations Expectations / Outstanding

4.20

V. FUTURE GOALS AND OBJECTIVES

Specific goals and objectives to be achieved in the next evaluation period:

Shorten: Continue what you're doing in considering capacity with future residential and commercial growth within the
District boundaries.

Smallwood: Open house to celebrate 60 years? My grandson wants a tour.

Wilson: Peter, continue to grow in all aspects of your job as District Manager. Remember there is always room for
improvement. | think you are doing a very good job, that's why | have given you the rating in this report. Don't stop growing
in your job.

Page 9 of 10



Board Action:

Next Evaluation Date:

GOVERNING BOARD Concurrence

Yes No
Barbara Smallwood, Chairman

Yes No
Raymond Wilson, Vice Chairman

Yes No
Ted Thran, Secretary-Treasurer

Yes No
Chris Shorten, Trustee

Yes No
Sondra Condron, Trustee
DISTRICT MANAGER COMMENTS & SIGNATURE
District Manager Signature Date

Page 10 of 10



EMPLOYMENT CONTRACT
BETWEEN
MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT
AND
PETER V. BARATTI

WHEREAS, Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District (hereinafter “MGSD” or
“DISTRICT”) is a governmental body formed under the laws of the State of Nevada and a
political subdivision of the State of Nevada; and

WHEREAS, Peter V. Baratti (hereinafter “EMPLOYEE”) represents that he maintains
the education, training, experience, ethics, and desire to act as the District Manager for MGSD;
and

WHEREAS, based on said representations, it is the desire of MGSD to retain the services
of EMPLOYEE as District Manager.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants herein contained, the
parties agree as follows:

1. POSITION TITLE AND RESPONSIBILITIES
EMPLOYEE shall be given the job title of DISTRICT MANAGER and shall perform the
functions and duties of the District Manager of MGSD as set forth by law and policy and
as specified in the Job Description and Duties (see attached Exhibit “A”) for District
Manager, and to perform other legally permissible and proper duties and functions as the
MGSD Board of Trustees shall assign from time to time.

2. TERM OF CONTRACT

a. This contract will become effective on July 1, 2025 and will expire on June 30,
2026. This contract will automatically renew for successive one-year periods
unless either party provides notice to the other party that the contract will not be
extended. Said notice shall be given in any form of writing, including email, not
less than ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date, but this section shall not
prevent or preclude either party from terminating the contract under any other
provision of the contract.

b. EMPLOYEE will be designated an “Appointed Official” as defined under NRS
281A.160. As such, EMPLOYEE’s position will be categorized as “Exempt”
under the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA). EMPLOYEE will serve at the
pleasure and under the supervision of MGSD’s Board of Trustees.

3. CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT
a. During the term of the Contract, EMPLOYEE agrees to live and maintain his
primary and legal residence, as defined by NRS 10.155, within 30 driving
minutes of the MGSD Plant facility (while obeying all motor vehicle laws).

Employment Contract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026
Page 1



Nothing in this Contract shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right
of MGSD to terminate the services of EMPLOYEE at any time for any reason
deemed sufficient or convenient by the MGSD Board of Trustees.

Nothing in this contract shall prevent, limit, or otherwise interfere with the right
of the EMPLOYEE to resign at any time from his position with MGSD.

MGSD may suspend EMPLOYEE with or without full pay and benefits at any
time during the term of this Contract pending any investigation or other
disciplinary hearing.

During the term of this Contract, EMPLOYEE agrees to file, in a timely manner,
all reports regarding his personal finances and other information as required by
Nevada law, including but not limited to the annual financial disclosure to the
Nevada Secretary of State’s Office.

4. SALARY and BENEFITS

a.

MGSD agrees to pay EMPLOYEE an annual base salary of $ for his
services rendered to MGSD. The annual base salary may be adjusted by the
Board of Trustees from time to time in its sole and absolute discretion. The
annual base salary is payable in installments in the same manner as all other
employees of MGSD are paid.

MGSD shall pay contributions to the Nevada Public Employees Retirement
System (PERS) on behalf of EMPLOYEE during his employment with MGSD
consistent with the contributions made on behalf of other employees of MGSD
and as permitted by and in strict accordance with Nevada law.

MGSD shall provide EMPLOYEE health, vision, dental, and life insurance
consistent with what other MGSD employees qualify to receive, which the Board
of Trustees may alter, amend, or terminate at any time in its sole discretion
consistent with applicable law and procedure.

MGSD shall provide EMPLOYEE all equipment (i.e., computer, software, cell
phone, etc.) necessary to perform the essential functions of the position,
including a smart phone to conduct MGSD business.

During the term of this Contract, EMPLOYEE shall be eligible to participate in
benefits established by MGSD that are consistent with benefits to all employees
of MGSD (see attached Exhibit “B”’), which benefits the Board of Trustees may
adjust, amend, or terminate in its sole discretion from time to time consistent
with Nevada law and procedure.

MGSD shall reimburse EMPLOYEE for any District-related expenses that are
incurred during the course of performance of his duties as District Manager
provided that EMPLOYEE follows all protocols and procedures that MGSD may
establish or require from time to time, for entitlement or reimbursement. These
expenses may include travel, lodging, food, and any other costs incurred, as set
forth in Section 8.b. below.

Employment Contract
Peter V. Baratti
July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026

Page 2



5. LEAVE AND HOLIDAYS
a. EMPLOYEE shall be credited with the vacation leave hours currently earned in
prior employment positions with MGSD. EMPLOYEE shall accrue vacation
leave at the same rate as other MGSD employees qualify to earn.

b. EMPLOYEE shall be credited with the sick leave hours currently earned in prior
employment positions with MGSD. EMPLOYEE shall accrue sick leave at the
same rate as other MGSD employees qualify to earn.

¢. EMPLOYEE shall be entitled to 11 State and Federal holidays per year as
designated in Attached Exhibit “B”. Paid holidays are determined by MGSD and
may change from time to time at the discretion of the Board of Trustees.

d. EMPLOYEE shall be permitted to utilize administrative leave time as outlined in
Section 4.6 of the MGSD Personnel Policies and Procedures manual.

6. ATTENDANCE AND LEAVE REPORTING
a. EMPLOYEE shall submit to MGSD’s administrative staff a written record of all
leave taken in eight-hour increments within 7 days of any leave taken.

b. Consistent with the FLSA and NRS, employees in exempt positions are not
required to be paid for overtime.

i. DISTRICT may make deductions from pay in full day increments when
EMPLOYEE does not qualify to use leave, does not have accrued leave,
or chooses not to use paid leave and is absent from work for one or more
full days. Deductions from sick or annual leave balances may be made
in full day increments.

ii. Deductions will also be made to offset amounts EMPLOYEE receives as
jury or witness fees, or for military pay; or for unpaid disciplinary
suspensions of one or more full days imposed in good faith for
workplace conduct rule infractions. MGSD will prorate EMPLOYEE’s
salary based upon the days worked during the initial and terminal pay
period of employment.

iii. EMPLOYEE is generally expected to be available to perform his job
duties during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday
through Friday, as well as scheduled Board meetings and during
emergency situations. It is expected that in order for EMPLOYEE to
complete his assigned work from time to time, it will be necessary that
he work beyond the normal work days and business hours of MGSD.

7. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

a. MGSD Board of Trustees, with input from EMPLOYEE, shall use best efforts to
establish priorities, goals, and expectations for EMPLOYEE in each year of this
Contract in accordance with Section 9 of this contract. MGSD shall use best
efforts to establish priorities, goals, and expectations for the EMPLOYEE that
coincide with EMPLOYEE’s annual evaluation as provided in Paragraph 7.b.
The priorities, goals, and expectations that are established may be modified,
added, or deleted as MGSD Board of Trustees deem appropriate, in consultation
with EMPLOYEE.

Employment Contract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026
Page 3



b. Each year prior to, or as near as possible to, MGSD’s tentative budget hearing in

April of each year, MGSD Board of Trustees will use best efforts to review and
evaluate EMPLOYEE’s performance in accordance with the Open Meeting Law
provisions of Chapter 241 of Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS). EMPLOYEE’s
evaluation shall be based on the priorities, goals, and expectations developed in
Paragraph 7.a., as well as EMPLOYEE’s performance of the responsibilities and
duties of the position as outlined in attached Exhibit “A”. The evaluation process
and evaluation rests within the exclusive discretion of the Board of Trustees and
is solely for the convenience of the Board of Trustees and EMPLOYEE.

8. PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

a.

MGSD Board of Trustees shall budget and pay for all necessary travel and
subsistence expenses incurred by EMPLOYEE to travel to meetings and
conferences, that will assist EMPLOYEE to continue his professional
development, and to adequately pursue other required functions as the District
Manager, including, but not limited to, any national, regional, state and local
government groups and committees that EMPLOYEE serves as a member, not to
exceed the amount budgeted by the Board each year for such purposes or such
other amount as the Board of Trustees may establish or determine from time to
time in its sole discretion.

MGSD Board of Trustees agrees to budget and pay for the travel and subsistence
expenses of EMPLOYEE for short courses, institutes and seminars that are
necessary for his professional development and for the good of MGSD in such
amount as the Board of Trustees may determine from time to time in its sole
discretion. The Chairman of the Board of Trustees must approve any course or
seminar that is longer than five working days or whose total costs exceed Two
Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($2,500.00).

EMPLOYEE agrees to maintain in good standing at all times during his
employment a Grade Il Wastewater Operations Certificate, issued by the State
of Nevada, or as required by the State of Nevada if higher than a Grade III.

9. STRATEGIC PLANNING

a.

EMPLOYEE agrees that, at least annually, he will schedule and participate in the
following:
i. A goals setting session to review and develop strategic objectives for
MGSD; and
iil. A workshop to develop specific criteria for the priorities and
expectations to serve as the basis for EMPLOYEE’s annual evaluation as
set forth in Section 7 of this Contract. This session must be held within
two (2) months of the date of the EMPLOYEE’s annual evaluation.

b. EMPLOYEE agrees that he will schedule and/or coordinate training regarding

Open Meeting Law and Ethics Law for newly elected members of the Board of
Trustees within three (3) months of newly elected officials taking an oath of
office.

Employment Contract
Peter V. Baratti
July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026

Page 4



¢. EMPLOYEE agrees that he will ensure updates occur to MGSD’s official
website on a monthly basis, or more frequently as needed; that the website
contains information that is informative to the public regarding MGSD’s
services, fees, policies, and board meeting information; and that the website
meets State and Federal requirements.

10. EMPLOYEE’S ROLE

a. EMPLOYEE shall have the authority on behalf of MGSD to enter into written
and verbal agreements with any customer, client, vendor, or third party in an
amount not to exceed Ten Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00), and for time-sensitive
expenditures not to exceed Fifty Thousand Dollars ($50,000.00) provided such
expenditures are approved by the Chairman or Vice Chairman of the Board of
Trustees, which authority may be revoked or adjusted from time to time as
determined by the Board of Trustees in its sole discretion.

b. EMPLOYEE shall have the authority to take employment actions including, but
not limited to, hiring and discipline as outlined in the current MGSD Policies and
Procedures Manual as may be amended from time to time by the Board of
Trustees in its sole discretion.

11. DISABILITY OR INABILITY TO PERFORM ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS
Without limiting any other right, power, or authority of the Board of Trustees set forth
elsewhere in this Contract or as may be exercised consistent with applicable law, if
EMPLOYEE is permanently disabled or is otherwise unable to perform his duties
because of sickness, accident, injury, mental incapacity or health, as determined by a
qualified health care professional as reasonably determined by the Board of Trustees, for
a period of four (4) successive weeks beyond any accrued sick leave, or for twenty
working days over a thirty working day period, MGSD shall have the option to terminate
this Contract, subject to Severance Pay requirements in Section 12. EMPLOYEE shall
also be compensated for any accrued sick leave, vacation, and other accrued benefits in
accordance with the then current MGSD policy for what other MGSD employees would
receive under similar circumstances.

12. TERMINATION/SEPARATION/RETIREMENT
a. At any time during the term of this Contract, MGSD may terminate the Contract
without cause by providing at least thirty (30) days’ advance written notice to the
EMPLOYEE. Notice shall be in accordance with Section 17 below. In lieu of
providing thirty (30) days’ notice, MGSD reserves the right to terminate the
Contract without such notice provided that it pays EMPLOYEE thirty (30) days’
pay in addition to any other severance or termination pay provided for herein.

b. At any time during the term of this Contract, EMPLOYEE may terminate this
contract by providing at least sixty (60) days’ advance written notice to MGSD.
Notice shall be in accordance with Section 17 below.

¢. Unless terminated for cause as described in Paragraph 12.e., or terminated by
EMPLOYEE for any reason whatsoever, if EMPLOYEE is terminated by MGSD
without cause, after MGSD has given notice in accord with Paragraph A above,
and during such time EMPLOYEE is willing and able to perform his duties under
this Contract, MGSD agrees to pay EMPLOYEE a lump sum cash severance

Employment Contract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026
Page 5



13.

14.

15.

payment equal to two (2) months’ aggregate salary of EMPLOYEE’s then
current annual base salary (“Severance Pay”), payable within seven (7) days of
termination.

d. Severance Pay shall be in addition to any other payment due to EMPLOYEE for
unused annual leave or other benefits that may be payable to other MGSD
employees with service credit equal to that of EMPLOYEE. EMPLOYEE and
any of his legal dependents will also remain in the group health plan of MGSD
and will continue to receive life insurance benefits, if any, provided to
EMPLOYEE prior to the last day EMPLOYEE provides services to MGSD
pursuant to the terms of this Contract. MGSD employs fewer than 20; therefore,
EMPLOYEE is not eligible for benefits under the Consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (“COBRA”).

e. For purposes of this Contract, termination for cause is defined as conduct that
constitutes a crime involving fraud, dishonest, or moral turpitude (except for
misdemeanor traffic citations), failure to maintain required licenses or
certifications, any material breach of this Contract, fraud or other dishonest
activity, neglect or failure to discharge duties or to follow directives from the
Board of Trustees, violation of any harassment or discrimination policy of the
Board or any conduct the Board reasonably determines to adversely and
materially reflect upon the business, affairs or reputation of MGSD, or conduct
that constitutes a knowing and willful violation of a law or MGSD policy
governing the conduct of public officers or employees. In such event, MGSD
shall give written notice of its desire to terminate EMPLOYEE for cause and the
effective date of the termination shall be twenty-one (21) days after notice is
given in accordance with Section 17 below, but EMPLOYEE may be suspended
from Employment during such time. If EMPLOYEE is terminated for cause,
EMPLOYEE shall not be entitled to receive Severance Pay.

RETURN OF PROPERTY

Upon separation under Section 12 of this Contract, EMPLOYEE agrees to return any and
all property of MGSD. This includes, but is not limited to, equipment, computers,
electronics, cell phones, keys, access information (including, but not limited to, user
names, passwords, and security questions/answers), notes, data, tests, vehicles, reports, or
any property that is requested by MGSD.

COMPLIANCE AND ADHERENCE TO DISTRICT POLICIES

EMPLOYEE agrees that he will act in accordance with this Agreement and with the best
interests of MGSD and to perform all the duties required of the position. In carrying out
the duties and responsibilities of his position, EMPLOYEE agrees to adhere to any and
all policies, procedures, rules, regulations, as administered by MGSD. In addition,
EMPLOYEE agrees to abide by all local, county, State, and Federal laws while employed
by MGSD.

GOVERNING LAW AND DISPUTES
a. This Employment Contract shall be construed and interpreted according to the
laws of the State of Nevada.

Employment Contract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026
Page 6



b. Any dispute regarding this Contract shall be resolved by binding arbitration, with
an arbiter selected from a list maintained by the Nevada Supreme Court of senior
District Court judges, with both parties to pay their own attorney’s fees and to
share equally in the cost of arbitration. There shall be no presumption for or
against the drafter in interpreting or enforcing this Contract.

c¢. MGSD shall select the senior District Court judge if both parties cannot mutually
agree to one.

16. SEVERABILITY
If any term, section, or provision, or any portion thereof, contained in this Contract is
held unenforceable, unconstitutional, or invalid, all remaining sections and provisions
shall be deemed severable and remain legally binding unless a court rules that any such
provision or section is invalid or unenforceable, thus limiting the effect of another
provision or section. In such case, the affected provision or section shall be enforced as
so limited.

17. NOTICES
a. Unless otherwise provided for herein, all notices that are to be sent under this
Agreement shall be done in writing and are to be delivered via Certified Mail
(return receipt) and, if applicable, under the terms of NRS 281, to the following
mailing addresses:
i. DISTRICT: Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District
1790 US. Hwy. 395 N.
Minden, NV 89423

ii. EMPLOYEE: Peter V. Baratti
1745 Oakwood Dr.
Minden, NV 89423

b. The aforementioned addresses may be changed with the act of either party
providing written notice.

18. AMENDMENTS
This Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and may only be
modified by a written amendment signed by both parties. This Contract may be executed
in any number of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original and all of
which, when taken together, will constitute one agreement. Any counterpart may be
delivered by any party by transmission of the signature page to the other party and shall
be complete upon the completion of such transmission; however, manually signed copies
of the signature page shall nonetheless be delivered promptly after any such facsimile
delivery. Any changes in EMPLOYEE’s base salary as provided herein shall not require
a written amendment to this Contract.

19. ENTIRE AGREEMENT
This Contract, together with any attachments, exhibits, or addendums, or documents
incorporated herein by reference, represents the entire agreement between MGSD and
EMPLOYEE. Therefore, this Contract supersedes any prior contracts, agreements,
promises, conditions, or understandings between MGSD and EMPLOYEE.

Employment Contract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026
Page 7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District Board of Trustees has

caused this Employment Contract for Peter V. Baratti to be signed and executed this day of
, 2025.

EMPLOYEE: DISTRICT:

Peter V. Baratti Ted Thran, Chairman

Board of Trustees
Minden-Gardnerville Sanitation District

ATTEST:

By:

Chris Shorten, Vice-Chairman

Employment Contract

Peter V. Baratti

July 1, 2025 — June 30, 2026
Page 8



r/\\
MGSD

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT

SINCE 1964

DISTRICT MANAGER
JOB DESCRIPTION

CREATED: January 2010
LAST REVISED: April 2019
(reviewed March 2024)

FLSA STATUS: Exempt

POSITION SUMMARY:

Plans, directs, manages, and oversees the activities and operations of the District. Coordinates District
activities with direction provided by the District Board of Trustees. Communicates with the public on
matters affecting the District through public affairs initiatives, press conferences, conducting and
attending public meetings and hearings, and doing public appearances. Provides information to residents,
businesses, and visitors through proactive communication methods that promote the District in a positive
and community-oriented manner. Engages in intergovernmental activities that promote the mutual
interest of the jurisdictions and comply with legal and regulatory requirements. Performs high-level
administrative, technical, and professional work in directing and supervising the administration of the
District. Receives broad policy guidance from the Board of Trustees.

DISTINGUISHING CHARACTERISTICS:

The position is responsible for the overall management and implementation of the administration,
operation, resources, and maintenance functions for the District, and acts as the District's representative
with respect to all services provided, consistent with the administrative and policy direction of the Board
of Trustees, with the authority to transmit instructions, receive information, and interpret the District's
policies and decisions. The District Manager is appointed by and reports to the District Board of
Trustees, and is unclassified and “at-will”, serving at the pleasure of the Board of Trustees.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

Duties include and are not limited to the following:
e Develops, evaluates, and implements administrative policies and procedures to meet Board goals
and objectives; assists the Board in the development of overall goals of the District; follows

District Manager
Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page 1 of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 = Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 = 775-782-4915 fax



suggested and recommended alternatives from the Board of Trustees; provides leadership and
direction in the development of short- and long-range plans for achieving overall goals.

Selects, directs, develops, evaluates, and manages personnel and personnel policies; determines
staffing needs; instructs and trains staff and provides training programs to enhance the
capabilities of staff, conducts performance evaluations; listens, responds to, and resolves
employee, problems, concerns, complaints, and grievances; administers discipline for inadequate
performance and/or improper behavior.

Supervises and manages the operation of all wastewater treatment facilities and processes,
including collection and treatment systems, effluent disposal systems, biosolids disposal, and
grease digestion program.

Represents the District as Public Information Officer (PIO) and serves as the spokesperson and
primary resource for District information; represents the District in appearances with various
federal, state, county, and local groups and through various media; makes presentations to
business, community, and other groups to present information and answer questions; represents
the District with other government agencies and with the public.

Oversees development of reports, financial statements, and budget forecasts for the amount of
funds needed for operations, materials, supplies, equipment, and staffing; monitors and approves
expenditures; recommends remedial action to adjust budgetary expenditures when expenditures
are over budget estimates or when unforeseen circumstances or budgetary cuts are imposed.
Develops, maintain, and monitors District website and social media strategy and content.
Analyzes proposals regarding policies, programs, and services, and develops recommendations to
the Board of Trustees; analyzes information pertaining to District services and operations,
including policies, programs, methods, budgets, staffing, organization, and capital needs; writes
reports and correspondence on behalf of the District to various government agencies and
members of the community.

Oversees the preparation of Board of Trustees meeting agendas; attends Board meetings; makes
oral and written presentations to the Board and to other public and private groups; provides
information to news media and the public regarding District operations.

Analyzes proposed legislation and administrative regulations for their impact on District
operations; reviews and makes recommendations to the Board of Trustees regarding legislative
activities; participates in the lobbying process by presenting oral and written testimony to
appropriate bodies.

Ensures the timely completion of scheduled projects according to applicable codes and
specifications; determines and implements modifications in specifications where appropriate;
researches and develops specifications for material and equipment used in facility operations.
Confers with and advises architects, builders, attorneys, contractors, engineers, and the general
public regarding District development and improvement policies and standards; oversees the
processing of development, construction, and annexation petitions and applications; assists
customers with enquiries regarding the District’s review and permitting process; assesses permit
and MGSD fees; represents the District’s interest in community development and public works
projects to other government agencies through various means, including meeting attendance
and/or written correspondence.

District Manager
Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page 2 of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 = Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 = 775-782-4915 fax



Determines the need for repair and maintenance of existing treatment and collection facilities and
equipment; determines when purchase of new equipment or construction of new facilities is
indicated; consults with the District Engineer and resources as required.

Evaluates laboratory results and processes control tests to assure adequate treatment process and
compliance with regulatory standards.

Maintains data on the wastewater treatment, effluent, biosolids disposal, and grease digestion
programs; prepares required reports and summary sheets that are sent to regulatory agencies
regarding the operation of the facilities.

Responsible for developing and implementing safety standards for the operation of District
equipment and facilities; ensures all District staff are trained and adhere to safety standards.
Insures that the facilities are in compliance with established guidelines and regulations.
Represents the District with dignity, integrity, and cooperatively in all relationships with staff and
the public.

Performs related duties as required by the Board of Trustees.

QUALIFICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT:

Knowledge of:

Skill to:

Principles and practices of organizational leadership, management, and supervision;

Principles of human resource development and utilization, including federal and state
employment regulations and practices;

Modern methods of procurement, contract negotiation, and administration;

Principles of public budget preparation and administration;

Modern methods of secondary wastewater treatment, chlorine formulas and testing techniques;
Pumping equipment and proper pump operation;

Corrective maintenance on facility equipment;

Mechanical, biological, chemical, and physical characteristics of wastewater treatment and
disposal systems;

Laboratory techniques and procedures as related to sewage treatment analysis;

Occupational hazards and safety precautions of the work;

Mathematical calculations at a level necessary to perform the essential functions;

PC computers and Microsoft software programs, including a functional knowledge of Word and
Excel; and

Laws and regulations which pertain to District operations, services, and programs.

Plan, organize, and manage business operations;

Negotiate appropriate solutions and contracts; and

Manage administrative processes including budgeting, internal controls, policy development,
planning, and problem solving.

Ability to:

District Manager
Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page 3 of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 = Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 = 775-782-4915 fax



Develop policies and goals consistent with directives from the Board of Trustees;

Effectively administer projects and operations consistent with District policies and goals;

Plan, direct, and evaluate the work of staff;

Develop, motivate, and supervise operations and administrative staff;

Work effectively under the pressure of deadlines, conflicting demands, and emergencies;

Establish and maintain effective working relationships with District staff, elective bodies, and

members of the general public;

e Collect, interpret, and evaluate narrative and statistical data pertaining to policy, fiscal, and
operational matters;

e Monitor and control wastewater treatment plant functions through the use of SCADA and
complex computer control systems;

e Gain cooperation through discussion and communication;

e Answer all types of emergency calls during hours not normally worked that deal with operational
problems to assure continual wastewater facilities operations;

e Analyze, read, record, and interpret policies, regulations, meters, charts, graphs, drawings, plans,
laboratory reports, operation and maintenance manuals;

e Recommend alternatives to Board of Trustees and staff;

e Project the consequences of proposed actions;

e Implement administrative policies and work programs consistent with regulations and with
District policies and goals;

e Interpret and apply federal and state policies, procedures, laws, and regulations to assure
compliance with requirements and limit liability for the District;

e Present findings, recommendations, and policies to individuals and groups in an understandable
and persuasive manner;

e Communicate effectively orally and in writing on matters related to District policy, funding, and

operations;

Prepare and administer budgets;

Prepare forms and reports as required by federal and state requirements;

Conduct research and prepare clear and concise reports;

Deal courteously and tactfully with the public;

Drive a vehicle;

Work in confined spaces wearing a breathing apparatus;

Speak, read, and write the English language at a level necessary to perform essential functions;

and

e Promote a positive image of the District.

REQUIRED CERTIFICATIONS AND LICENSES:
e Grade III (Non-Restricted) State of Nevada, Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Certification
e Certification of completion of OSHA 30-hour training and safety course

District Manager
Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page 4 of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 = Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 = 775-782-4915 fax



EXPERIENCE AND TRAINING:
Any combination of training, education, and experience that would provide the required knowledge,
skills, and abilities. A typical way to gain the required knowledge, skills, and abilities is:
e High School diploma or equivalency; and
e Four years of increasingly-responsible experience in the field of wastewater operations, sewage
treatment plant works, and sewage collection.

MENTAL/INTELLECTUAL AND PHYSCIAL REQUIREMENTS:

The physical and mental/intellectual requirements described here are representative and of those that must
be met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of the job.

o Sufficient mobility to work in a typical field setting and use related equipment necessary for the
job or tasks as necessary.

e Ability to frequently climb stairs and ladders.
Senses of sight, hearing, smell, taste and touch.

o Ability to effectively interpret reports, financial data, construction, architectural, and engineering
plans, and maps.

e Ability to interact professionally, communicate effectively, and exchange information accurately
with all internal and external customers.

e Strength and stamina to drive long distances;

e Must have manual dexterity and cognitive ability to operate a personal computer using word
processing, spreadsheet, and database programs.

e The ability to communicate via telephone.

e Ability to appropriately handle stress and interact with others, including coworkers, clients, and

customers.

e Sufficient hand and body coordination to perform maintenance tasks and to check gauges and
valves.

e Frequently lifting and carrying 1-25 pounds from floor to waist level and infrequently lifting up
to 50 pounds.

e Regular and consistent punctuality and attendance.
In compliance with applicable disability laws, reasonable accommodations may be provided for qualified

individuals with a disability who require and request such accommodations. Applicants and incumbents
are encourages to discuss potential accommodations with the Board of Trustees.

WORKING CONDITIONS:

Work is performed under the following conditions:
e Position functions at a wastewater treatment facility and may occasionally take place at
construction sites, as well as in confined spaces.

District Manager
Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page 5 of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 = Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 = 775-782-4915 fax



o  Working above and below ground; heights, in excess of 20 feet, depths below ground in excess of
20 feet.
Exposure to extreme weather conditions including freezing temperatures, snow, ice.

o Exposure to dust, odors, methane gas, chemicals which may include but not limited to acids,
polymers, chlorine, sodium hydroxide, lime and fumes.

o Exposure to waste, hazardous and infectious waste, noise electrical hazards, moving objects,
vehicles, sharp objects, pinch points, gases, dust, and slippery surfaces.

e Safety equipment utilized may include hearing and eye protection, safety shoes, gloves, masks,
respirators, and a safety vest.

e Indoors in an office type environment where work is performed at a desk.

e Periodic contact with angry and upset individuals

e Frequent work interruptions of planned work activities by telephone calls, office visitors, and
response to unplanned events.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS:

e Must file financial disclosure form on annual basis with Nevada Secretary of State.
e Must be bondable.

EMPLOYEE’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

I have read and understand this explanation and job description.

Signature Date

Print Name

District Manager
Job Description (Rev. April 2019)
Page 6 of 6

1790 Hwy. 395 = Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 = 775-782-4915 fax



r/\\
MGSD

MINDEN-GARDNERVILLE SANITATION DISTRICT

SINCE 1964

LIST OF DUTIES

POSITION TITLE:

SUPERVISED BY:

District Manager

Board of Trustees

CREATED: April 2019
REVISED: October 2020
May 2022

March 2024

SUPERVISOR POSITION? Yes

List of Key Responsibilities

Supervise and manage operations of District
and staff
Manage office/administration operations and
staff
Report to Board of Trustees and attend
Board Meetings
Submit required reports to various
regulatory agencies
o DMR’s (Discharge Monitoring
Reports) — quarterly
o Bio-Solids Reports — annually
o Haz-Mat Reports — annually
Effluent Agreements
o Calculate billing amounts — annually
GRGID Agreements
o Prepare fixed billings — quarterly
o Prepare variable billings — semi-
annually
Budgeting
o Prepare/submit/manage annual
budget
o Coordinate with accountant

o Review/sign payroll
o Review/approve purchase orders
o Sign Checks —up to $10,000 (and
all utilities in any amount)
e Plan Review
e Determine capacity requirements and fees
o Issueupto 10 edu’s of capacity
without Board approval
e Attend pre-application meetings with
County personnel
e Attend pre-construction meetings/special
meetings in the field
e Employee evaluations
e Enforce adherence to MGSD Code/Policies
e (Coordinate with engineers
o Plant projects
o Rehabilitation/Repairs
e Coordinate with Legal Counsel
o Website design, management, and updates
e District public relations and customer
service

MGSD

District Manager
List of Duties (March 2024)
Page 1 of 3

1790 Hwy. 395 « Minden, Nevada 89423

775-782-3546 « 775-782-4915 fax



List of General Responsibilities:

Plans, directs, manages, and oversees the activities and operations of the District.

Coordinates District activities with direction provided by the District Board of Trustees.
Communicates with the public on matters affecting the District through public affairs initiatives, press
conferences, conducting and attending public meetings and hearings, and doing public appearances.
Provides information to residents, businesses, and visitors through proactive communication methods
that promote the District in a positive and community-oriented manner.

Engages in intergovernmental activities that promote the mutual interest of the jurisdictions and

comply with legal and regulatory requirements.

Performs high-level administrative, technical, and professional work in directing and supervising the

administration of the District.

Receives broad policy guidance from the Board of Trustees.

List of Essential Functions:

Develops, evaluates, and implements
administrative policies and procedures to
meet Board goals and objectives; assists the
Board in the development of overall goals of
the District; provides leadership and
direction in the development of short- and
long-range plans for achieving overall goals.

Selects, directs, develops, evaluates, and
manages personnel and personnel policies;
determines staffing needs; instructs and
trains staff and provides training programs
to enhance the capabilities of staff; conducts
performance evaluations; listens, responds
to, and resolves employee, problems,
concerns, complaints, and grievances;
administers discipline for inadequate
performance and/or improper behavior.

Supervises and manages the operation of all
wastewater treatment facilities and
processes, including collection and
treatment systems, effluent disposal systems,
biosolids disposal, and grease digestion
program.

Represents the District as Public
Information Officer (PIO) and serves as the

spokesperson and primary resource for
District information; represents the District
in appearances with various federal, state,
county, and local groups and through
various media; makes presentations to
business, community, and other groups to
present information and answer questions;
represents the District with other
government agencies and with the public.

Oversees development of reports, financial
statements, and budget forecasts for the
amount of funds needed for operations,
materials, supplies, equipment, and staffing;
monitors and approves expenditures;
recommends remedial action to adjust
budgetary expenditures when expenditures
are over budget estimates or when
unforeseen circumstances or budgetary cuts
are imposed.

Develops, maintain, and monitors District
website and social media strategy and
content.

Analyzes proposals regarding policies,
programs, and services, and develops
recommendations to the Board of Trustees;

MGSD

District Manager
List of Duties (March 2024)
Page 2 of 3

1790 Hwy. 395 = Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 = 775-782-4915 fax



analyzes information pertaining to District
services and operations, including policies,
programs, methods, budgets, staffing,
organization, and capital needs; writes
reports and correspondence on behalf of the
District to various government agencies and
members of the community.

Oversees the preparation of Board of
Trustees meeting agendas; attends Board
meetings; makes oral and written
presentations to the Board and to other
public and private groups; provides
information to news media and the public
regarding District operations.

Analyzes proposed legislation and
administrative regulations for their impact
on District operations; reviews and makes
recommendations to the Board of Trustees
regarding legislative activities; participates
in the lobbying process by presenting oral
and written testimony to appropriate bodies.

Ensures the timely completion of scheduled
projects according to applicable codes and
specifications; determines and implements
modifications in specifications where
appropriate; researches and develops
specifications for material and equipment
used in facility operations.

Confers with and advises architects,
builders, attorneys, contractors, engineers,
and the general public regarding District
development and improvement policies and
standards; oversees the processing of
development, construction, and annexation
petitions and applications; assists customers
with enquiries regarding the District’s
review and permitting process; assesses
permit and impact fees; represents the
District’s interest in community

development and public works projects to
other government agencies through various
means, including meeting attendance and/or
written correspondence.

Determines the need for repair and
maintenance of existing treatment and
collection facilities and equipment;
determines when purchase of new
equipment or construction of new facilities
is indicated; consults with the District
Engineer and resources as required.

Evaluates laboratory results and processes
control tests to assure adequate treatment
process and compliance with regulatory
standards.

Maintains data on the wastewater treatment,
effluent, biosolids disposal, and grease
digestion programs; prepares required
reports and summary sheets that are sent to
regulatory agencies regarding the operation
of the facilities.

Responsible for developing and
implementing safety standards for the
operation of District equipment and
facilities; ensures all District staff are trained
and adhere to safety standards.

Insures that the facilities are in compliance
with established guidelines and regulations.

Represents the District with dignity,
integrity, and cooperatively in all
relationships with staff and the public.

Performs related duties as required by the
Board of Trustees.

MGSD

District Manager
List of Duties (March 2024)
Page 3 of 3

1790 Hwy. 395 » Minden, Nevada 89423 « 775-782-3546 = 775-782-4915 fax



Agenda Item 12

Administrative Report by Staff

Items in this Section Include:

v’ Administrative Staff Report for March 2025



1.0 .

SINCE 1964

N

Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District
Administrative Report
March 4, 2025

STAFF ITEMS:

Haley and Jessica have completed Pool
Pact’s Human Resources
Representative Certificate Program.
They will be attending the advanced
class in April.

Peter, Cliff, and Operators attended
the NWEA Annual Conference in
February. They will also be attending
the Nevada Rural Water Annual
Conference in March.

UPCOMING ITEMS:

Approve the FY 25-26 Tentative Budget (date
TBD at the March 4 Regular Board Meeting)

THINGS KEEPING US BUSY RIGHT NOW:

FY 25-26 budget is still in progress

Jessica will be transferring HR files to a digital
format



	Board Packet Insert Sheets 3-4-2025.pdf
	Baratti evaluation notice 02-06-2025.pdf
	memo form district manager annual review 2025.pdf
	Baratti Proof of Service 02-06-2025.pdf
	District Manager Total Value Compensation Statement.pdf
	Sheet1

	2024 Evaluation Form Scored.pdf
	Sheet1

	District Manager Employment Contract 25-26.pdf
	District Manager 2024 Job Description - Revised.pdf
	District Manager List of Duties 2024.pdf
	3-04-25 Agenda.pdf
	2025-02-21 MGSD  2025 Rehab CMAR - Recomend Award MMO.pdf
	CHECKING export for Jan 2025.pdf
	PAYROLL export for Jan 2025.pdf
	PR-OPERATIONS Jan 2025.pdf
	CAPITAL EXPENSES Jan 2025.pdf
	Account Summary Statement - Cash Flow January 2025 Board.pdf
	03-25 mgrs rpt.pdf
	Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District
	District Manager's Report

	Monthly Capacity Report - 02-25.pdf
	Sheet1

	2025-03 Admin Report.pdf
	Minden Gardnerville Sanitation District
	Administrative Report

	02-04-25.pdf



